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The James B. Hunt Jr. Library
North Carolina State University

The North Carolina Office of the State Controller is proud this year to feature the James B. Hunt

Jr. Library on the cover of the 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The Hunt
Library, which opened in January 2013, features over 221,000 gross square feet, including space for
the Institute for Emerging Issues and other university centers and institutes. Anchoring Centennial
Campus’ Academic Oval, the building is longer and wider than a football field, stretching roughly
460 feet in length and 180 feet at its widest point. It is 88 feet high at the tallest point, providing
dramatic views of Lake Raleigh and the city skyline.

The Hunt Library has almost 100 group study rooms and technology-equipped spaces to support
learning, research, and collaboration. The robot-driven bookBot automated book delivery system
holds up to two million volumes in 1/9 the space of conventional shelving, enabling the library to
provide more space for learning and collaboration. The bookBot is 50 feet wide by 160 feet long by
50 feet tall and is excavated 20 feet below the first floor. The bookBot delivers books in minutes with
a click in the online catalog. Visitors can watch the bookBot in action through a glass wall on the
first floor (“Robot Alley”), as four robots dart up and down enormous aisles to pinpoint and retrieve
materials.

The James B. Hunt Jr. Library’s bold design is a visual statement of its bold purpose: to be a place
not of the past but of the future, a place where students, faculty, and partners can gather to research,
learn, experiment, collaborate, and strengthen NC State’s long tradition of leading transformative
change.

Photo courtesy of NC State University/Becky Kirkland.
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State of North Carolina
Office of the State Controller

DAvID T. McCoy
STATE CONTROLLER

The Honorable Pat McCrory, Governor
Members of the North Carolina General Assembly
Citizens of North Carolina

In compliance with G.S. 143B-426.40H, it is our pleasure to provide you with the State of North Carolina’s 2013
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). This report has been prepared by the Office of the State Controller.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclo-
sures, rests with the state government and this office. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects. We believe all disclosures necessary to enable you to gain an understanding
of the State's financial activities have been included.

Although the State budgets and manages its financial affairs on the cash basis of accounting, G.S. 143B-426.40H
requires the Office of the State Controller to prepare a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America. Except for schedules clearly labeled
otherwise, this CAFR has been prepared in accordance with GAAP.

North Carolina’s State government management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the State are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

In compliance with North Carolina’s General Statutes, an annual financial audit of the State financial reporting entity is
completed each year by the North Carolina Office of the State Auditor. The Auditor's examination was conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
the Auditor’s opinion has been included in this report. In addition, the State coordinates the Single Audit effort of all
federal funds through the State Auditor.

This letter of transmittal is intended to complement the management discussion and analysis (MD&A) and should be
read in conjunction with it. The MD&A provides an overview of the State’s financial activities addressing both
governmental and business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial statements. In addition, the MD&A
focuses on the State’s major funds: the General Fund, the Highway Fund, the Highway Trust Fund, the Unemployment
Compensation Fund, the EPA Revolving Loan Fund, the N.C. Turnpike Authority, and the N.C. State Lottery Fund. The
MD&A can be found immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report.

MAILING ADDRESS: 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410
STREET ADDRESS: 3512 Bush Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609
Phone (919) 707-0500 ~ Fax (919) 981-5567
http://www.osc.nc.gov ~~ An EEO/AA/AWD Employer
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Profile of the State of North Carolina

North Carolina became the 12" state of the union in 1789. North Carolina is located on the Atlantic
coast and is bordered by Georgia, South Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia. The State has a land area of
approximately 50,000 square miles. The State’s estimated population is 9.85 million, making it the 10"
most populated state in the nation. Ninety-two percent of the State’s population lives in metropolitan
areas. The North Carolina coastline is 301 miles, the greatest distance east to west is 543 miles, and the
greatest distance north to south is 188 miles. The State’s elevation rises from sea level on the eastern
coastline to 6,684 feet at Mount Mitchell in the Appalachian mountain range on our western border.
There are 79,492 miles of roads, with Interstate 40 crossing North Carolina east to west, and Interstates
77, 85 and 95 crossing the State north to south. North Carolina’s capital and central state government
administration is located in Raleigh, in the central piedmont. Charlotte, Raleigh, Greensboro, Durham,
and Winston-Salem are North Carolina’s largest cities and there are 100 counties.

North Carolina continues to grow and to be an attractive place to live, to work, and to raise a family.
The State has been consistently ranked as one of the nation’s “Top Business Climates” according to Site
Selection magazine. It has taken the top honor 10 times in the last 13 years in the annual selection by
the magazine. In addition, North Carolina is ranked among the best business climates in the nation by
CNBC, Forbes and Chief Executive.

North Carolina’s state government consists of an executive branch, a legislative branch, and a
judicial branch. The executive branch is headed by the Governor. The Governor, Lieutenant Governor,
and eight other statewide elected officers form the Council of State. The State Constitution provides
that, “A Secretary of State, an Auditor, a Treasurer, a Superintendent of Public Instruction, an Attorney
General, a Commissioner of Agriculture, a Commissioner of Labor, and a Commissioner of Insurance
shall be elected by the qualified voters of the State....” All administrative departments, agencies, and
offices of the State and their respective functions, powers, and duties shall be allocated by law among
and within not more than 25 principal administrative departments.

The legislative power of the State is vested in the General Assembly, which consists of a Senate and
a House of Representatives. The Senate is composed of 50 Senators, elected on a biennial basis. The
House of Representatives is composed of 120 Representatives, elected on a biennial basis.

The Courts of the Judicial Branch are split into three divisions, the Appellate Division, the Superior
Court Division, and the District Court Division. Judges are elected on a non-partisan basis.

The State of North Carolina entity as reported in the CAFR includes all fund types of the
departments, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities governed and legally controlled by the
State's executive, legislative and judicial branches. In addition, the reporting entity includes legally
separate component units for which the State is financially accountable. The component units are
discretely presented in the government-wide financial statements. The State's discretely presented
major component units are the University of North Carolina System, the State's community colleges,
and the State Health Plan. The criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and its presentation are
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its GASB Codification Section
2100. These criteria are described in Note 1 of the accompanying financial statements.

The State and its component units provide a broad range of services to its citizens, including primary
and secondary education; higher education; health and human services; economic development;
environment and natural resources; public safety, corrections, and regulation; transportation;
agriculture; and general government services. The costs of these services are reflected in detail and in
summary in this report.
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Budgetary
Control

Overview

National
Economic
Outlook

In addition to internal controls discussed previously, the State maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the General Assembly. Activities of the General Fund,
departmental special revenue funds, and permanent funds are included in the annual appropriated
budget. The Highway Fund and the Highway Trust Fund, the State's major special revenue funds, are
primarily budgeted on a multi-year basis. Capital projects are funded and planned in accordance with
the time it will take to complete the project. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is exercised at both the departmental and
university level, with allotment control exercised by the State Controller, and on the program line-item
levels requiring certain approvals by the Director of the Budget. Legislative authorization of
departmental expenditures appears in the state Appropriation Bill. The certified budget is the legal
expenditure authority; however, the Office of State Budget and Management may approve executive
changes to the legal budget as allowed by law. These changes result in the final budget presented in the
required supplementary information.

Economic Condition

During fiscal year 2012-13, the economy gathered momentum. Economic conditions in the State, as
well as the nation, reflected a moderately improving economy. The slow-paced recovery of the previous
three years began to gather strength in 2012. For many industries, growth was strong enough to improve
their economic output to levels experienced prior to the recession. During the fiscal year, overall
economic activity in the State improved, surpassing the pace of growth nationally. Despite the overall
improvement, employment gains remained weak. Employment growth has been persistently stubborn
keeping unemployment rates elevated above where one would expect them to be three plus years after
the last economic downturn. The State’s economy during the fiscal year added 70,800 payroll jobs. This
still left non-agricultural employment in the State with 113,000 fewer people employed than at the end
of fiscal year 2007- 08, and the unemployment rate at 8.9%.

During the first-half of the fiscal year, it appeared the economy was gaining momentum. By the
second-half of the year much of this momentum had been lost, and the nation’s Gross Domestic Product
(GDP, a broad measure of economic activity) dropped well-below the average rate of growth. Global
economic instability intensified and continued to be a drag on the nation’s economy. Moreover, fiscal
policy uncertainties on both taxes and spending at the federal level intensified during late summer and
into the fall of 2012, further impeding the pace of growth in the economy. Given these mixed signals
both employers and consumers continued to be cautious.

During the fiscal year (FY), the State’s improvement in the overall economy led to a 3.4% increase
in wage and salary income. Growth in total wage and salary income increased by 4.5% the second
quarter of the fiscal year, but slowed to 2.6% growth in the last half of the fiscal year. Despite this
slowdown, employment and income are anticipated to improve for the rest of 2013, approaching a
normal, average pace of growth. In 2014, wages are forecast to grow faster than the average rate of
5.1%.

United States Economic Indicators FY2011-12 FY2012-13 FY2013-14 FY2014-15

Actual Actual Projected Projected
Economic growth (GDP)* 2.1% 1.8% 2.9% 3.8%
Personal Income 3.6% 4.1% 5.3% 6.1%
Corporate Pre-Tax Profits 8.7% 9.8% 2.7% 5.9%
Retail Sales and Food Services 6.6% 4.9% 4.8% 5.2%
Consumer Price Index 2.9% 1.7% 1.9% 2.3%
30-yr Fixed Mortgage Interest Rate 4.0% 3.5% 4.8% 5.0%

*Adjusted for inflation

10
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The national economy has been hampered by a weak global economy, especially key trading
partners in the Eurozone. The aftermath of the global financial crisis continued to affect economies
worldwide. This was especially true in the Eurozone where sovereign debt problems escalated during
the previous fiscal year. As a result, the Eurozone collectively experienced an economic downturn and
only exited their recession this past summer. Offsetting some of the weakness in the overall global
economy was a rebound in the nation’s housing market. While improvements in the housing market
were modest, the improvement seemed to boost consumer confidence and improved many of the related
industries hurt by the five-year decline in housing. Consequently, the economy further stabilized,
though remained in a below-normal growth pattern throughout most of the fiscal year. The nation’s
outlook for the remainder of 2013 and 2014 is for stronger growth approaching the long-run average
growth in the economy.

Economic indicators convey the moderate pace of growth in the nation during the fiscal year. The
overall economy experienced below average growth recording only a 1.8% increase in GDP. This was
slower than in the previous fiscal year. The economy appeared poised to move into a stronger recovery
growth phase with 2.6% annualized growth in the third quarter of 2012. By the next quarter, rather than
accelerating, growth had slowed to 1.6%. Despite the sporadic pace of the recovery, the rebound in the
U.S. housing market means the nation’s economy would continue to gain momentum. In FY 2013-14,
the national economy is expected to grow by 2.9%. The following fiscal year economic activity is
expected to grow 3.8%, surpassing the long-run average rate of growth of 3.0%.

Weak economic growth during 2012, and into 2013, meant that employment would be slow to
improve. The nation’s unemployment rate dropped to 7.4%, but long-term unemployment and under-
employment continued to cloud the employment picture. What growth there was in employment helped
increase personal income. During the fiscal year, total personal income in the nation rose by 4.1%.
Further advancements in the overall economy are projected to push personal income growth to 5.3% in
FY 2013-14.

Business profitability saw a major rebound after the recession, but profits had leveled-off by 2012.
Many businesses coming out of the recession were bolstered by a global economic recovery primarily
in emerging markets such as India and China. In the past year, export demand softened as the sovereign
debt crisis, which mostly affected European countries, weakened export growth and lowered
expectations for profit growth. Nonetheless, profits grew by nearly 10% during the fiscal year. Profit
growth is forecast to weaken with respective growth in the upcoming fiscal years of 2.7% and 5.9%.

A good indicator of the health of the economy is retail sales. This key indicator experienced
continued strong growth in FY 2012-13. Consumers were hit hard during the economic downturn as
household wealth declined, credit markets tightened, inflation-adjusted wages fell, and the employment
picture darkened. While these problems have improved, they continue to persist and consumer spending
is expected to soften in the upcoming fiscal year. When the real estate market broadly, and fully,
stabilizes and the employment picture improves, consumers may be more likely to increase their
spending.

To summarize, the global concerns about the fiscal health of many European nations along with the
nation’s struggle to repair damage to the housing market during the Great Recession continued to
impact economic conditions for most of the fiscal year. U.S. fiscal policy played a smaller role during
the fiscal year, but still added uncertainty for business decision makers. Part of what was fueling
economic growth, a global economic recovery, suffered a setback with debt problems plaguing many
industrialized nations. While the debt problems showed marked improvement in 2012, the after effects
still lingered. Thus, any chance for a stronger national recovery was held back by the weakened global
economy.
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North Carolina Economic Indicators FY2011-12 FY2012-13 FY2013-14 FY2014-15
Actual Actual Projected Projected
State Gross Product 2.5% 5.1% 4.8% 6.0%
Personal Income 4.1% 3.6% 5.0% 5.7%
Wages & Salaries 2.9% 3.4% 4.7% 5.3%
Retail Sales 7.3% 6.3% 6.3% 6.5%
Unemployment Rate 9.9% 9.3% 8.4% 8.2%
Employment (Nonagricultural) 1.5% 1.8% 1.7% 2.1%
Population 1.0% 1.5% 1.8% 2.5%
Existing Single-family Home Sales 32.7% 30.5% 7.9% 1.1%

For North Carolina, as with the nation, the economy has strengthened, but not enough to eliminate
the employment losses from the economic downturn. Economic indicators for the fiscal year, point to
growing improvements across the State. Despite adding 70,800 jobs during the fiscal year, there were
still 113,000 fewer people employed in the State (3% of total nonfarm employment) than at the end of
the 2007- 08 fiscal year. Most private sector industries experienced modest growth, but employment in
the construction industry continued to decline. Along with the gains in employment, total salary income
continued to improve growing 3.4%.

Projections for the State’s key economic indicators reflect how the recovery in the State is expected
to unfold. Gross State Product, a broad measure of the State’s economic activity is expected to continue
solid growth in FY 2013-14. Total personal income growth moderated in FY 2012-13, but is expected
to show steady improvement over the next two fiscal years. For the fiscal year, income rose 3.6%, but
the increase lags well behind the strong growth of six to seven percent experienced in the years prior to
the onset of the recession. Wage and salary income, a component of total personal income, grew at a
modest 3.4% for the fiscal year. The rise in wage and salary income was consistent with the increase in
total employment. Going forward, improved growth in total income is projected. This growth will result
from a continually improving employment situation, plus upward pressure on individual wages, where
growth has been stagnant the past five years. A return to long-term growth levels in wage and salary
income is forecast for 2014.

As with the nation, the recovery in North Carolina gained strength, but the pace of the recovery
remained sluggish during FY 2012-13. This meant fewer jobs were being created and the
unemployment rate at the end of the fiscal year remained elevated at 8.9%. That compares to the 9.6%
at the start of the fiscal year. Despite a slow-growth economy and high unemployment, retail sales grew
at a rate of 6.3%. The growth in retail sales slowed from the previous year yet remained above average.
Going forward, retail sales are expected to stay above 6%, increasing at a pace above the long-term
average growth rate of 5%.

As the State’s economy continues to progress, employment prospects are expected to improve, but a
robust employment climate is not projected until 2015. Employment conditions, while improving, will
not be great enough to significantly change the unemployment rate. The rate is projected to remain
elevated above 8% into 2014. Except for construction and resource mining, all other industry sectors
experienced growth over the previous year with net employment growth of 1.9%. With the rebound in
residential construction, the construction industry is expected to have employment gains during the
upcoming fiscal year. For 2014, modest improvement in all industries is expected, increasing non-
agricultural employment by 1.7%. This pace of growth, however, will be too slow to greatly reduce the
unemployment rate. The rate is projected to average 8.4% in FY 2013-14, and 8.1% in FY 2014-15.

The State’s manufacturing sector saw a turnaround in employment during the fiscal year.
Manufacturing reached double-digit percentage losses in the last recession. During this fiscal year, the
manufacturing sector added only 4,700 jobs (1.1% growth). Manufacturing employment is now above
443,000. This is still 91,000 fewer jobs than at the start of the recession. Another hard hit industry in the
State was the financial sector. The financial market began to rebound in 2010, but employment is not
expected to surpass pre-recession numbers until 2015.
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The housing recession and the subsequent adjustments in the real estate market have taken a very
long time to unwind. A strong rebound in home sales was underway in 2012. Fiscal year 2012-13 ended
with sales of existing homes increasing by 30.5%. The growth, while impressive, reflects how sharp the
fall off in home sales had been from 2007-2010. In 2014, annual existing home sales are projected to
remain 10% below what they were at the peak in 2006.

Gradually improving economic conditions continued throughout the fiscal year and has the State’s
economy on a more solid footing. The ongoing weakness in the global economy was a drag on the pace
of the economic recovery, both for the nation and the State, and continues to pose a risk for economic
growth. The housing market is expected to maintain its gradual improvement and with steady growth in
household income and consumer spending anticipated, stronger employment gains are projected in
2014,

— Economic analysis prepared by Barry Boardman, Ph.D., Chief Economist
North Carolina General Assembly, Fiscal Research Division
September 23, 2013

13



State of North Carolina

State
Tax
Reform

Unemployment
Insurance
Changes

Government
Data
Analytics
Center

Long-term Financial Planning

The 2013 General Assembly passed significant legislation to reform the State’s tax code and
unemployment insurance system.

Session Law 2013-316, the Tax Simplification and Reduction Act, created a flat personal income
tax, reduced personal and corporate income tax rates, and increased sales and use tax revenues through
an expanded base by removing several exemptions and preferential rates. It also repealed the estate tax,
reduced franchise taxes and eliminated several tax earmarks. The desired outcome of the tax reform is
to provide tax relief to individuals and corporations, attract new industry and business to the State and
spur economic growth.

Starting in fiscal year 2009 after the great recession, the State’s unemployment insurance fund was
depleted and could not keep pace with paying unemployment benefits without borrowing from the
federal government. The State’s debt to the federal government grew to $2.2 billion for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. To address this debt and restructure the program, Session Law 2013-2 made
several tax rate and programmatic changes to the State’s unemployment insurance system. The changes
reduce the amount and duration of benefits, increase employer tax rates, and require governmental and
nonprofit employers to maintain a reserve for payment of benefits. The effect of the restructuring is to
increase the unemployment fund’s revenues, reduce its expenses, and accelerate the repayment of the
debt owed to the federal government. The Fiscal Research Division of the General Assembly estimates
that the legislative changes will result in repayment of the debt in 2015, three years sooner than
repayment would have occurred without the changes.

Major Initiatives

Recent legislation expanded the State’s existing data and business intelligence initiatives. The
Government Data Analytics Center (GDAC) was created to manage the State’s enterprise data
integration and business analytics efforts. The vision of the GDAC is to transform existing data assets
into an information utility for the State’s policy and operational leaders for their use in determining
program investment, managing resources and improving financial programs, budgets and results. The
GDAC initiative includes all state agencies, departments, and institutions, including the University of
North Carolina and is not intended to replace transactional systems, but instead to leverage the data
from those systems for enterprise-level state business intelligence. The ultimate goal of the GDAC is to
provide users with analytical information to make better decisions, saving the State time and money.

The powers and duties of the GDAC are to continue and coordinate ongoing enterprise data
integration efforts including:

1. Criminal Justice Law Enforcement Automated Data System (CJLEADS). This is a tool
developed by the State to provide criminal justice professionals with integrated
comprehensive offender information. CJLEADS serves over 26,700 criminal justice users at
the state, federal and local levels. The fiscal year 2013 release provided the ability to verify
outstanding warrants against a statewide warrant repository on a real-time basis. Additional
information about CJLEADS is available at http://www.cjleads.nc.gov.

2. North Carolina Financial Accountability and Compliance Technology System (NCFACTS).
The objective of NCFACTS is to develop automated fraud, waste and improper payment
detection capabilities. In fiscal year 2013, NCFACTS continued development of
unemployment insurance and workers’ compensation fraud and compliance alerts. The first
production releases of NCFACTS are scheduled for the second quarter of fiscal year 2014.

3. Individual-level student data and workforce data from all levels of education and the State
workforce.

The GDAC requirements include taking inventory of existing State business intelligence projects,
identifying redundancies and gaps, and developing a plan to discontinue redundancies. The GDAC is
also responsible for ensuring that data integration actions are completed in a manner that maintains the
security of data and protects the privacy of personal information.
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Relevant Financial Policies

General Statute 143C-4-2 established the Savings Reserve Account as a reserve in the General Fund.
The State Controller “shall reserve to the Savings Reserve Account one-fourth of any unreserved fund
balance, as determined on a cash basis, remaining in the General Fund at the end of each fiscal year.”

The Savings Reserve Account is a component of the unappropriated General Fund balance and
serves as the State’s rainy day fund. Funds in the Savings Reserve Account shall be available for
expenditure only upon an act of appropriation by the General Assembly. The General Assembly
recognizes the need to establish and maintain sufficient reserves to address unanticipated events and
circumstances such as natural disasters, economic downturns, threats to public safety, health, and
welfare, and other emergencies. It is a goal of the General Assembly and the State to accumulate and
maintain a balance in the Savings Reserve Account equal to or greater than 8% of the prior year’s
General Fund appropriation budget.

At the beginning of fiscal year 2012-13, the balance of the Savings Reserve Account was $418.8
million. In accordance with Session Law 2013-360 the State Controller transferred $232.5 million from
the unreserved fund balance to the Savings Reserve Account on June 30, 2013, bringing the balance to
$651.3 million. This represents 3.3% of the prior year’s General Fund appropriation budget. Although
the State fell short of its 8% goal, there is improvement compared to last year. The Savings Reserve
Fund continues to be replenished after being depleted during the last recession.

General Statute 143C-4-3 established the Repairs and Renovations Reserve Account (R&R
Account) as a reserve in the General Fund. The State Controller “shall reserve to the Repairs and
Renovations Reserve Account one-fourth of any unreserved fund balance, as determined on a cash
basis, remaining in the General Fund at the end of each fiscal year.”

The funds in the R&R Account shall be used only for the repair and renovation of State facilities and
related infrastructure that are supported from the General Fund. Funds reserved to the R&R Account
shall be available for expenditure only upon an act of appropriation by the General Assembly. In
accordance with Session Law 2013-360 the State Controller transferred $150 million from the
unreserved fund balance to the R&R Account on June 30, 2013 to end the fiscal year with a balance of
$161.9 million.

The 2004 General Assembly passed legislation creating the Debt Affordability Advisory Committee.
The Committee is charged, on an annual basis, with advising the Governor and the General Assembly
of the estimated debt capacity of the State for the upcoming 10 fiscal years. The Committee is also
required to recommend other debt management policies consistent with sound management of the
State’s debt.

The Committee is responsible for preparing an annual debt affordability study and establishing
guidelines for evaluating the State’s debt burden. The Committee is required to report its findings and
recommendations to the Governor, the General Assembly, and the Fiscal Research Division of the
General Assembly by February 1 of each year.

The Committee’s 2013 study found that North Carolina’s debt is manageable at current levels. The
Committee has adopted the ratio of debt service as a percentage of revenues as the controlling metric
that determines the State’s debt capacity. The study indicated the State’s current revenue picture is
positive, reflecting a continued economic recovery. After a period during which weak revenue growth
constrained the State’s debt capacity, the State’s General Fund now has debt capacity in each of the
next 10 years. The ratio of debt service to revenues will peak at 3.94%, slightly below the 4% target.

The following target and ceiling guidelines are the basis for calculating the recommended amount
of General Fund-supported debt that the State could prudently authorize and issue over the next 10
years:
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1. Net tax-supported debt service as a percentage of general tax revenues should be targeted at no
more than 4% and not exceed 4.75%;

2. Net tax-supported debt as a percentage of personal income should be targeted at no more than
2.5% and not exceed 3.0%; and

3. The amount of debt to be retired over the next ten years should be targeted at no less than 55%
and not decline below 50%.

The Committee recommended continuing the State’s conservative debt management policies. The
study emphasized centralized debt management as a key control and best management practice, and
strongly encouraged the General Assembly to adopt language restricting the ability of state agencies to
enter into financial arrangements that incur debt or debt-like obligations. In addition, replenishing the
Savings Reserve Account should remain a priority.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of North Carolina for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the
19" consecutive year (1994 to 2012) the State has received the prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to
program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it
to the GFOA.

In conclusion, we believe this report provides useful data to all parties using it in evaluating the
financial activity of the State of North Carolina. We in the Office of the State Controller express our
appreciation to the financial officers throughout the State and to the Office of the State Auditor for their
dedicated efforts in assisting us in the preparation of this report. Any questions concerning the
information contained in this report should be directed to the Office of the State Controller at
(919) 707-0500.

Respectfully submitted,

Do ﬂ?\ca,

David T. McCoy
State Controller

November 25, 2013
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
Office of the State Hubitor
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20601 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-0601
~ ¥ Telephone: (919) 807-7500

Fax: (919) 807-7647
Beth A. Wood, CPA Internet

State Auditor http://www.ncauditor.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Pat McCrory, Governor
The General Assembly of North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
following:

» The financial statements of the North Carolina State Lottery Fund, which is a major enterprise fund and
represents 3 percent and 35 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type activities.

» The financial statements of the North Carolina Turnpike Authority, which is a major enterprise fund and
represents 46 percent and 0.85 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type
activities.

» The financial statements of the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, which represent 5 percent,
3 percent, and 3 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units.

» The financial statements of the State Education Assistance Authority, which represent 13 percent, 3 percent,
and 2 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units.

» The financial statements of the University of North Carolina System - University of North Carolina Health
Care System - Rex Healthcare, which represent 2 percent, 2 percent, and 4 percent, respectively, of the
assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. :

» The financial statements of the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan of North Carolina, which represent
6 percent, 7 percent, and 8 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate
remaining fund information.

» Cash basis claims and benefits of the State Health Plan, which represent 16 percent of the expenses of the
aggregate discretely presented component units.

The financial statements and transactions listed above were audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to these amounts, are based on the reports of the other
auditors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the State Education Assistance Authority, the University of North Carolina System -
University of North Carolina Health Care System - Rex Healthcare, and the Supplemental Retirement Income
Plan of North Carolina were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of North Carolina, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 22 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2013, the State implemented
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State of North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and
schedules, introductory section, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONCLUDED)

The combining fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and other auditors in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based
on our audit, the procedures performed as described previously, and the reports of other auditors, the combining
fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated November 25, 2013 on
our consideration of the State of North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the State of North Carolina’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance. The report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will be published at a later date in the State of North Carolina’s Single Audit Report.

ool A vad

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor

Raleigh, North Carolina
November 25, 2013
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Financial
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the State of North Carolina’s (the State)
financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report and with the State's financial statements, which follow this
section.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

— The State’s total net position increased by $2.825 billion or 7.95% as a result of this year’s
operations. Net position of governmental activities and business-type activities increased by $2.378
billion (or 6.64%) and $447.088 million (or 166.59%), respectively. At year-end, net position of
governmental activities and business-type activities totaled $38.193 billion and $178.718 million,
respectively.

— Component units reported net position of $22.054 billion, an increase of $1.426 billion or 6.92%
from the previous year. The majority of the net position increase is attributable to the University of
North Carolina System, a major component unit.

Fund Financial Statements:

— The fund balance of the General Fund increased from $1.049 hillion at June 30, 2012 (as restated)
to $1.28 billion at June 30, 2013, an increase of 22.02%. The fund balance increase is due, in part,
to the higher than expected growth in individual income taxes.

— The fund balance of the Highway Fund decreased 47.15% to $332.46 million at June 30, 2013. The
significant decrease in federal recovery funds along with no capital inflow from new bond
issuances were the main contributors to the fund balance decrease.

— The fund balance of the Highway Trust Fund increased 62.62% to $620.753 million at June 30,
2013. The fund balance increase is primarily due to the continued growth in new car sales, which
led to an increase in the highway use tax.

— The Unemployment Compensation Fund reported net position of negative $1.564 billion at June
30, 2013 compared to negative $1.909 billion at June 30, 2012. The improvement in net position is
attributable to the drop in the State’s unemployment rate.

— Net ticket sales of the N.C. State Lottery Fund (Lottery) increased 5.84% from the previous fiscal
year to $1.69 billion. As required by law, the Lottery’s net profit of $478.509 million was
transferred to the General Fund to support educational programs.

— The net position of the N.C. Turnpike Authority (Authority) increased 5.94% to $286.423 million
at June 30, 2013. The Authority completed the final phase of the Triangle Expressway System, the
State’s first modern toll road.

Capital Assets:

— The State’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) was $43.948 billion, an
increase of 4.39% from the previous fiscal year-end.

— This year’s major capital asset additions were for state highway system construction ($2.1 billion),
toll road construction ($101.7 million), computer software development at the Department of
Health and Human Services ($144 million), and construction of psychiatric hospitals ($39.2
million). Also, the State completed and placed into service a new facility that will house the State
Laboratory of Public Health and the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner.

Long-term Debt:

— The State had total long-term debt outstanding (bonds, special indebtedness, and notes payable) of
$8.598 billion, a decrease of 3.56% from the previous fiscal year-end. The State issued $250
million in limited obligation bonds reported in governmental activities and refinanced $1.401
billion of its existing general obligation bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates.
Additionally, the N.C. Turnpike Authority, a business-type activity, had additional borrowings of
$89.37 million from a federal transportation loan.

— InJanuary 2013, all three rating agencies affirmed the triple-A credit rating for the State. The rating
agencies recognized the State’s historically conservative budgeting, financial management, and
debt issuance practices. North Carolina remains one of only nine states with a triple-A rating from
all three rating agencies.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements, which comprise three
components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains additional required supplementary information (General Fund budgetary schedule, pension and
other postemployment benefits funding progress and contributions) and other supplementary information (combining
financial statements) in addition to the basic financial statements. These components are described below.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are two financial statements that report information about
the State, as a whole, and about its activities that should help answer this question: Is the State, as a whole, better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting. The current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The Statement of Net Position (pages 50 and 51) presents all of the State’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the sum of these components reported as “net position.” Over
time, increases and decreases in net position measure whether the State’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities (pages 52 and 53) presents information showing how the State’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the
change occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these
statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

In the government-wide financial statements, the State’s activities are divided into three categories:

e Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and
intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services.

e Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain services
it provides. The State’s Unemployment Compensation Fund, the EPA Revolving Loan Fund, the N.C. State Lottery
Fund, and the N.C. Turnpike Authority are the predominant business-type activities.

o Discretely Presented Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially accountable. A description of the component units and an address
for obtaining their separately issued financial statements can be found beginning on page 74. Discretely presented
component units are combined and displayed in a separate discrete column in the government-wide financial statements
to emphasize their legal separateness from the State. In addition, financial statements for major component units are
presented in the notes to the financial statements (pages 158 and 159).

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the State’s most significant funds (i.e., major
funds) — not the State as a whole. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. In addition to the major funds, page
182 begins the individual fund data for the nonmajor funds. The State's funds are divided into three categories
(governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) and they use different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds — Most of the State's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on how cash
and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out (i.e., inflows and outflows of spendable
resources) and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending (i.e., balances of spendable resources).
Consequently, the governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps users determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State's programs. The
State prepares the governmental fund financial statements using the modified accrual basis of accounting and a current
financial resources measurement focus. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, a reconciliation schedule, which follows each of the governmental fund financial statements,
explains the relationships (or differences) between them. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
financial statements for the General Fund, the Highway Fund, and the Highway Trust Fund, all of which are considered to
be major funds. Data for all other governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.
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Proprietary funds — When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to
agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds (enterprise and
internal service) utilize accrual accounting, which is the same method used by private sector businesses. Enterprise funds
are used to report activities for which fees are charged to external users for goods and services. The Unemployment
Compensation Fund, the EPA Revolving Loan Fund, the N.C. State Lottery Fund, and the N.C. Turnpike Authority are our
most significant enterprise funds. Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods and services to the
State’s other programs and activities on a cost-reimbursement basis, such as the State Property Fire Insurance Fund, the
Motor Fleet Management Fund, Computing Services Fund, and the State Telecommunications Services Fund. Because the
State’s internal service funds predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
Information is presented separately in the proprietary fund financial statements for the Unemployment Compensation Fund,
the EPA Revolving Loan Fund, the N.C. State Lottery Fund, and the N.C. Turnpike Authority, all of which are considered
to be major funds. Conversely, separately aggregated columns are presented for the nonmajor enterprise funds and the
internal service funds. Individual fund data for the nonmajor enterprise funds and internal service funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the State’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. The State's fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position. These funds include pension and other employee benefit trust funds, private-purpose trust funds,
investment trust funds, and agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-
wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 74 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) follows the basic financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
The RSI is mandated by the GASB and includes General Fund budgetary comparison schedules reconciling the statutory to
the generally accepted accounting principles fund balances at fiscal year-end, and pension plan and other postemployment
benefits trend information related to funding progress and contributions.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes the introductory section; combining financial statements for nonmajor
governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds, internal service funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor discretely presented
component units; a statement of cash flows for the State Health Plan, a major component unit, which does not issue separate
financial statements; and the statistical section.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE

Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator of whether a government’s financial position
is improving or deteriorating. The State’s combined net position increased $2.825 billion or 7.95% over the course of this
fiscal year’s operations. The net position of the governmental activities increased $2.378 billion or 6.64% and business-type
activities increased $447.088 million or 166.59%. The following table was derived from the government-wide Statement of
Net Position:

Net Position
June 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary Total
Activities Activities Government Percentage
2012 2012 2012 Change
2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2012-2013
Current and other non-
current assetS..........cceeeeee $ 9,872,121 $ 9,090,488 $3,235,850 $ 3,301,993 $13,107,971 $ 12,392,481 5.77%
Capital assets, net................ 42,787,000 41,037,062 1,160,765 1,061,534 43,947,765 42,098,596 4.39%
Total assets........ccccceereveenen. 52,659,121 50,127,550 4,396,615 4,363,527 57,055,736 54,491,077 4.71%
Long-term liabilities.............. 8,851,111 9,055,542 3,824,232 4,164,764 12,675,343 13,220,306 (4.12%)
Other liabilities...................... 5,614,521 5,256,597 393,665 467,133 6,008,186 5,723,730 4.97%
Total liabilities................... 14,465,632 14,312,139 4,217,897 4,631,897 18,683,529 18,944,036 (1.38%)
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets........c.ccocueeene 40,432,694 38,705,712 410,050 391,831 40,842,744 39,097,543 4.46%
Restricted............... 792,966 703,781 995 1,468 793,961 705,249 12.58%
Unrestricted..........ccccovevinene (3,032,171) (3,594,082) (232,327) (661,669) (3,264,498) (4,255,751) 23.29%
Total net position............... $ 38,193,489 $ 35,815,411 $ 178,718 $ (268,370) $38,372,207 $ 35,547,041 7.95%

The largest component of the State’s net position ($40.843 billion) reflects its investment in capital assets (land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, state highway system, and other capital assets), less related debt still outstanding that
was used to acquire or construct those assets. Restricted net position is the next largest component ($793.961 million). Net
position is restricted when constraints placed on their use are 1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or 2) legally imposed through constitutional provisions. The remaining portion,
unrestricted net position, consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”

The government-wide statement of net position for governmental activities reflects a negative $3.032 billion unrestricted
net position balance. The State of North Carolina, like many other state and local governments, issues general obligation
debt and special indebtedness and distributes the proceeds to local governments and component units. The proceeds are
used to construct new buildings and renovate and modernize existing buildings on the State’s community college and
university campuses, assist county governments in meeting their public school building capital needs, and to provide grants
and loans to local governments for clean water and natural gas projects. Of the $7.467 billion of bonds and special
indebtedness outstanding for governmental activities at June 30, 2013, $5.03 billion is attributable to debt issued as state aid
to component units (universities and community colleges) and local governments. The balance sheets of component unit and
local government recipients reflect ownership of the related constructed capital assets without the burden of recording the
debt obligation. The policy of issuing bonded debt and distributing the cash proceeds to non-primary government (non-
state) entities has been in place for decades. However, by issuing such debt, the State is left to reflect significant liabilities
on its statement of net position (reflected in the unrestricted net position component) without the benefit of recording the
capital assets constructed or acquired with the proceeds from the debt issuances. Additionally, as of June 30, 2013, the
State’s governmental activities have significant unfunded liabilities for compensated absences of $425.714 million,
worker’s compensation of $150.251 million, and a court judgment payable of $741.703 million (see Note 8 to the financial
statements). In 2008, a Superior Court judge ruled that certain civil fines and penalties should have been remitted to North
Carolina public schools and not diverted to other uses. These unfunded liabilities also contribute to the negative unrestricted
net position balance for governmental activities.
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The following financial information was derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities and reflects how the
State’s net position changed during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary Total
Activities Activities Government Percentage
2012 2012 2012 Change
2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2012-2013
Rewvenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for SEerViCes..........cccoeverereneiennnnn $ 2,200,904 $ 2,096,263 $3,386,089 $ 3,212,770 $ 5586,993 $ 5,309,033 5.24%
Operating grants and contributions.............. 15,759,693 15,605,227 1,423,526 1,966,023 17,183,219 17,571,250 (2.21%)
Capital grants and contributions.................. 1,010,889 977,961 21,109 15,436 1,031,998 993,397 3.89%
General revenues:
Taxes
Individual inCOMe taX........cccoverereneneenns 11,113,597 10,459,307 — — 11,113,597 10,459,307 6.26%
Corporate inCoOmMe taX........ccovereereerereneens 1,194,850 1,233,989 — — 1,194,850 1,233,989 (3.17%)
Sales and use tax. 5,556,484 5,530,046 — — 5,556,484 5,530,046 0.48%
Gasoline tax 1,889,439 1,892,163 — — 1,889,439 1,892,163 (0.14%)
Franchise tax 849,850 804,973 — — 849,850 804,973 5.57%
Highway use tax..... 555,581 506,211 — — 555,581 506,211 9.75%
Insurance tax.... 540,844 479,755 — — 540,844 479,755 12.73%
Beverage tax.. 330,918 322,190 — — 330,918 322,190 2.71%
Inheritance tax..... 113,721 57,839 — — 113,721 57,839 96.62%
Tobacco products tax... 287,340 293,597 — — 287,340 293,597 (2.13%)
Other taxes 305,726 294,516 — — 305,726 294,516 3.81%
Tobacco settlement 213,078 146,135 — — 213,078 146,135 45.81%
Unrestricted investment earnings................. 13,621 (56,055) — — 13,621 (56,055) 124.30%
Miiscellaneous 44,837 41,960 7 — 44,844 41,960 6.87%
Total revenues 41,981,372 40,686,077 4,830,731 5,194,229 46,812,103 45,880,306 2.03%
Expenses:
General goVernMENt.........cceoverereieienennnnn 990,505 937,353 — — 990,505 937,353 5.67%
Primary and secondary education 9,830,897 9,760,909 — — 9,830,897 9,760,909 0.72%
Higher education...... 4,027,721 4,238,695 — — 4,027,721 4,238,695 (4.98%)
Health and human services 18,258,538 17,752,493 — — 18,258,538 17,752,493 2.85%
Economic development.........cccccoeevencnenn. 595,494 667,106 — — 595,494 667,106 (10.73%)
Environment and natural resources.............. 493,775 470,965 — — 493,775 470,965 4.84%
Public safety, corrections and regulation...... 2,945,856 2,976,448 — — 2,945,856 2,976,448 (1.03%)
TransSpOortation.........ccooeeeeereeieeeeese e 2,491,032 2,400,599 — — 2,491,032 2,400,599 3.77%
AGHCUIUIE. ... 187,718 188,985 — — 187,718 188,985 (0.67%)
Interest on long-term debt.... 233,325 282,542 — — 233,325 282,542 (17.42%)
Unemployment compensation. 2,496,445 3,283,900 2,496,445 3,283,900 (23.98%)
N.C. State Lottery......... — 1,215,944 1,141,941 1,215,944 1,141,941 6.48%
EPA Revolving Loan.. — — 23,711 14,026 23,711 14,026 69.05%
N.C. Turnpike AUthority........ccccecerviirennnes — 77,899 17,565 77,899 17,565 343.49%
Regulatory programs.. — 76,455 69,980 76,455 69,980 9.25%
Insurance programs — 17,591 38,701 17,591 38,701 (54.55%)
North Carolina State Fair...........c.ccccceeeneene. — 13,465 13,030 13,465 13,030 3.34%
Other business-type activities. — — 13,400 12,084 13,400 12,084 10.89%
Total EXPENSES......oiviiiiieieieeere e 40,054,861 39,676,095 3,934,910 4,591,227 43,989,771 44,267,322 (0.63%)
Increase (decrease) in net position
before contributions and transfers............ 1,926,511 1,009,982 895,821 603,002 2,822,332 1,612,984 74.98%
Contributions to permanent funds............... 2,834 3,297 — — 2,834 3,297 (14.04%)
TraNSTerS. v 448,733 401,740 (448,733) (401,740) — — 0.00%
Increase (decrease) in net position.......... 2,378,078 1,415,019 447,088 201,262 2,825,166 1,616,281 74.79%
Net position - beginning - restated............... 35,815,411 34,400,392 (268,370) (469,632) 35,547,041 33,930,760 4.76%
Net position - ending..........ccccceverininininnnns $38,193,489 $ 35815411 $ 178,718 $ (268,370) $38,372,207 $ 35,547,041 7.95%
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Governmental
Activities

For fiscal year 2013, revenues outpaced expenses and when combined with transfers from the
State’s business-type activities, an increase in net position of $2.378 billion (or 6.64%) resulted for
governmental activities. Total revenues increased by 3.18% ($1.3 billion) while total expenses
increased more slowly at 0.95% ($378.77 million). The increase in total revenues is attributable mainly
to growth in individual income taxes. Taxpayers had an incentive to shift income into tax year 2012
because of the expectation of higher future taxes. In addition, numerous other taxes (e.g., sales and use,
franchise, highway use, insurance, beverage, and inheritance taxes) had higher collections during the
current fiscal year. Corporate income taxes decreased slightly because of tax settlements recognized in
the prior year. The increase in individual income taxes and other taxes is an indication that the State’s
economy is turning in a positive direction.

The following chart reflects the dollar change in the revenues by source of governmental activities
between fiscal years 2012 and 2013:

Dollar Change in Governmental Activities Revenues by Source
Between Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013
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For fiscal year 2013, spending increases in the functional areas of health and human services,
transportation, primary and secondary education, environment and natural resources, and general
government were mostly offset by spending decreases in the State’s other functional areas. The growth
in health and human services is primarily due to increased spending for Medicaid (the State’s largest
public assistance program). Medicaid enrollment and utilization increased during the current period.
Higher education spending decreased during the current period due to larger distributions of higher
education bond proceeds in fiscal year 2012.

Medicaid is a federal entitlement program, which means individuals found eligible for Medicaid
have legal rights to receive services and cannot be denied coverage by the State. In North Carolina,
Medicaid is administered by the State and counties and financed with federal and state funds. Medicaid
serves as the State’s safety net program for eligible individuals who lose jobs and health insurance
coverage. As such, it is sensitive to economic volatility. Higher growth rates occur during years of
economic distress and when major Medicaid expansions are enacted. Lower growth rates occur when
the Medicaid eligible population is stable or declining.

The following chart reflects the dollar change in the functional expenses of governmental activities
between fiscal years 2012 and 2013:
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Business-type
Activities
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The following chart depicts the total expenses and total program revenues of the State’s
governmental functions. This format identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-
financing through fees and intergovernmental aid or draws from the general revenues of the State.
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Business-type activities reflect an overall increase in net position of $447.088 million or 166.59%,

primarily because of the financial results of the Unemployment Compensation Fund. The net position
increase of $345.302 million in the Unemployment Compensation Fund is explained by the drop in the
State’s unemployment rate. The net position increase of $16.066 million for the N.C. Turnpike
Authority is due primarily to transfers in from the Highway Trust Fund. The net position increase of
$66.019 million in the EPA Revolving Loan Fund is due to the recognition of federal capitalization
grants. The N.C. State Lottery Fund has no net position since its net profits are distributed to the State’s
governmental activities, as required by statute. A more detailed discussion of the State’s business-type
enterprise activities is provided in the following section (see Enterprise Funds).
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Governmental
Funds

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS

The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. At June 30, 2013, the State’s governmental funds
reported combined fund balances of $3.789 billion, an increase of 9.01% from the prior fiscal year-end
(as restated). Of this amount, $158.821 million is classified as unassigned fund balance in the General
Fund (available for spending at the State’s discretion). The remainder of fund balance is either
nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form (e.g.,
inventories), 2) restricted for particular purposes by external sources, 3) committed for particular
purposes by the N.C. General Assembly, or 4) assigned for particular purposes by the Office of State
Budget and Management. The major governmental funds are discussed individually below.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. The fund balance of the General Fund
increased 22.02% to $1.28 billion at June 30, 2013. The fund balance increase is due, in part, to the
higher than expected growth in individual income taxes. Individual income tax and corporate income
tax increased by 6.26% and 2.5%, respectively, while sales and use tax revenues increased by 0.68%.
The number of employed persons in North Carolina has steadily increased in 2013, which has led to
increased withholdings by companies remitting payroll taxes. North Carolina’s unemployment rate fell
from 9.6% in June 2012 to 8.8% in June 2013 but remains higher than the national average (7.3% in
August 2013). Additionally, the expectation of higher federal income taxes in tax year 2013 provided an
incentive for households to shift income into tax year 2012. Federal tax policy was not decided until the
end of December 2012. Estimated individual income tax payments for January 2013 and final payments
remitted in April 2013 were 42% and 24% higher, respectively, than the same month in 2012.

One of the major budget drivers for the General Fund is the Medicaid Program. On the budget basis,
appropriation expenditures for Medicaid increased 16.2% in fiscal year 2012-13 to $3.52 billion. In
March 2013, budget writers were confronted with a significant budget gap in the State’s Medicaid
budget due to increased enrollment and utilization, a one-time state reimbursement of federal drug
rebate payments, and a miscalculation of federal receipts. To ensure adequate funding through July
2013, the General Assembly authorized a total of $496 million in additional Medicaid funding (Session
Law 2013-56 and Session Law 2013-184). Sources of funding to cover the Medicaid shortfall included
departmental receipts, funds diverted from other divisions of the Department of Health and Human
Services, $308.1 million in unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis), and fiscal year 2012-13 over
collections. The specific actions taken in fiscal year 2012-13 to mitigate the growing population and
expenditures in Medicaid included 1) a restructure of some fee for service payment rates, 2) pharmacy
improvements, 3) maintaining the 2012 effective rate reduction plan, 4) expansion of North Carolina’s
waiver for behavioral health services, 5) enhanced care management of the Medicaid population by
Community Care of North Carolina, and 6) modification of personal care services eligibility policies.
Medicaid enrollment remained constant at 15.8% of North Carolina’s population in fiscal year 2012-13.

General Fund Budget Variances

The original General Fund budget, including state appropriations and appropriations supported by
departmental receipts, serves as a starting point or plan for the Governor to execute the General Fund
budget pursuant to the powers granted by the Constitution and State Budget Act. At the state level in
North Carolina, it is not unusual for the budget to change during the fiscal year in relation to budget
adjustments made to accommodate departmental receipts. The General Fund budget supported by state
appropriation is a subset of the General Fund financial schedule presented in the CAFR as required
supplementary information. The current CAFR schedule reflects all spending required to support the
State’s General Fund activities and the funding to support those activities, including state tax and non-
tax revenues, federal revenues, student tuition, and other fees, licenses, and fines. Under current state
budget management practice, particularly related to departmental federal receipts, primary emphasis is
placed on comparisons of the final authorized budget and actual spending.
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At the state level, budgetary cuts related to state appropriations are implemented by decreasing
allowable actual expenditures, as opposed to decreasing the state appropriation through a formal
legislative process. The Governor and state agencies maintain legal authority to spend the dollars
originally appropriated to them; however, in recent years the actual spending has been limited by the
collection of tax and nontax revenue. In extremely rare cases, the General Assembly has held special
sessions to formally amend the authorized and certified state appropriation budget.

The portion of the original budget comprising departmental receipts is not intended to be the sole
controlling point to manage the State’s General Fund budget. The final budget includes amendments for
departmental receipts collected during the fiscal year as allowed by law. General Fund departmental
receipts are typically authorized for expenditure within the activity that generated the receipt.
Historically, final estimated receipts have varied significantly from the original estimate at the
beginning of the fiscal year. State agencies by law must spend departmental receipts prior to spending
tax and nontax supported appropriations. If departmental receipts are higher than expected, appropriated
dollars may go unspent and be re-appropriated in a subsequent fiscal year.

Variances — Original and Final Budget

In general, the variances between original and final budget are attributable to the timing and length
of the budget preparation process and the budgeting of American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA) funds for the fiscal year. The original budget for fiscal year 2012-13 was prepared
approximately 18 months prior to the final budget existing at June 30, 2013. The final budget reflects all
budget revisions made throughout the fiscal year to adjust for known facts as well as supplemental
adjustments approved in the 2012 Session of the General Assembly. Consequently, when the original
budget is compared to the final budget, it would be expected that significant variances can occur.

Additional factors leading to variances between the original and final budget in fiscal year 2012-13
include the following:

1) Awarding of new unanticipated federal grants and/or the awarding of unanticipated increased or
decreased amounts in long-standing federally supported programs. This also led to the necessity of
budgeting unanticipated required state match.

2) Statewide encumbrance carry-forward budgeted amounts from fiscal year 2011-12 totaled $214.13
million.

3) Allocation of statewide reserves to agencies and universities for the purposes of retirement and
hospitalization formula adjustments, contingency and emergency, information technology related
programs, and various other budgeted statewide reserves.

4) Receipt and budgeting of over-realized receipts, prior year earned revenues, and unanticipated
donations and grants.

5) Budgeting of federal ARRA funds that increased the final revenue and expenditure budgets.

Variances - Final Budget and Actual Results

Actual total revenue collected (both tax and non-tax, excluding departmental) exceeded budgeted
amounts in fiscal year 2012-13. This result occurred because North Carolina adopted a cautious revenue
outlook, the economy performed slightly better than expected, and taxpayers shifted income into tax
year 2012 due to the expectation of higher future taxes. These factors mainly translated into higher than
anticipated individual and corporate income tax collections, two of North Carolina’s largest and most
volatile revenue sources. In contrast, sales and use tax collections finished fiscal year 2012-13 below
forecast as consumer spending remained below anticipated levels.

Departmental federal funds actually received by agencies were less than the final authorized
budgeted federal fund revenues. A variance between the budget and actual federal funds occurs because
actual federal fund receipts are reflective of the actual expenditures. Therefore, if qualifying federal
costs are not incurred by an agency, the actual receipt of federal funds could be significantly less than
the budget.
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Highway Fund

The Highway Fund dates back to 1921, when the General Assembly first imposed the gasoline tax.
It accounts for most of the activities of the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT),
including the maintenance and construction of the State’s primary and secondary road systems, the
Division of Motor Vehicles, the State Highway Patrol, transit, rail and ferry system. The primary
revenue sources of the Highway Fund are federal funds, three-fourths of gasoline taxes, vehicle
registration fees, and driver’s license fees.

The fund balance of the Highway Fund decreased from $629.07 million at June 30, 2012 to
$332.46 million at June 30, 2013, a decrease of 47.15%. A significant decrease in federal recovery
funds along with no capital inflow from new bond issuances were the main contributors to this
reduction. Total revenues were $3.292 billion, an increase of 1.63%. While federal highway fund
billings and gasoline tax revenue increased, the decrease in federal recovery funds mostly offset the
growth of these and other revenue sources. By the end of fiscal year 2012, over 96% of federal recovery
funds for highway infrastructure had been exhausted. As a result, federal stimulus billings for 2013
were less than the previous year. Total expenditures were $3.394 billion, an increase of $ 7.01%. The
reallocation of Powell Bill payments to municipalities to the Highway Fund due to Session Law 2013-
183 increased expenditures in the fund by $47.55 million. Increased expenditures in transportation
infrastructure and debt service also contributed to the decrease in fund balance.

The State issued $179.54 million in grant anticipation revenue vehicle bonds (GARVEE’s) in
January 2012. This innovative financing tool was used to accelerate the funding of transportation
improvement projects across the State by leveraging future federal transportation revenues. At June 30,
2013, $40.523 million of the GARVEE proceeds were unspent.

Population growth is placing an increasing demand on the State’s transportation system. North
Carolina’s population grew from 8.05 million in 2000 to 9.85 million in 2013, an increase of 22.36%.
The U.S. Census estimates North Carolina’s population growing to approximately 12.2 million by 2030,
which would place the State as the seventh most populated state in the country. According to the 2012
Report on the Condition of the State Highway System prepared by the N.C. Division of Highways, over
a 10-year period (2002 to 2011), paved lane miles grew by 10% while bridge deck area grew by
approximately 21%. During this same 10-year period, vehicle miles traveled increased by 12%. While
the recent recession slowed the growth in vehicle miles traveled, current rates indicate a return to pre-
recession levels. This increase places a heavier burden on the existing infrastructure and accentuates the
need for additional capacity, safety, and maintenance funding to address the deterioration in service
created by the increase in traffic. Furthermore, many of the State’s highways were built as farm-to-
market roads and were not designed to handle the heavy traffic volumes of today, and other highways
such as the interstate highway system, which has celebrated its 50th anniversary, are nearing the end of
their functional life.

Transportation is fundamental in continuing North Carolina’s prosperity and quality of life as the
state’s population continues to grow. To address the growing demand on the transportation system,
increased cost of supplies, and declining funding, NCDOT continues to seek innovative solutions to
meet the growing stress on the transportation system. In response to declining motor fuels tax and the
decreasing purchasing power of the Highway Fund, Session Law 2009-108 repealed the cap on the
motor fuels tax and set the variable portion of the tax at 12.4 cents per gallon or 7% of the average
wholesale price whichever is greater, thus setting a floor of 29.9 cents per gallon. This remained in
place through June 30, 2011. Session Law 2012-142 reinstated the cap on the motor fuels tax at a rate of
37.5 cents per gallon effective July 1, 2012 until June 30, 2013. Session Law 2013-316 continued the
cap on the motor fuels tax at 37.5 cents per gallon effective until June 30, 2015.

Highway Trust Fund

Legislation creating the Highway Trust Fund was passed by the General Assembly in 1989. It was
established to provide a dedicated funding mechanism to meet a specific set of highway construction
needs in North Carolina. Additionally, the Highway Trust Fund provides supplemental allocations for
secondary road construction, supplemental assistance to municipalities for local street projects, and
pays the debt service on the State’s general obligation bonds issued for highway purposes. The principal
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revenue sources of the Highway Trust Fund are highway use taxes, one-fourth of gasoline taxes, and
various title and registration fees. The enabling legislation also specifies that a designated amount will
be transferred each year to the General Fund. The legislation was amended in 2008 to also require
annual transfers to the N.C. Turnpike Authority to pay debt service or financing expenses for specified
toll road construction projects (see Note 10(B) to the financial statements). The amounts transferred to
the General Fund for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 were $27.596 million and $76.721 million,
respectively. The budget legislation for fiscal year 2013 reduced the transfer amount to the General
Fund.

The fund balance of the Highway Trust Fund increased from $381.729 million at June 30, 2012 to
$620.753 million at June 30, 2013, an increase of 62.62%. The fund balance increase was primarily due
to continued growth in new car sales which led to an increase in the highway use tax. Gasoline
consumption also rose slightly from the previous year contributing to the overall increase. Total
revenues were $1.128 billion, an increase of 5.53%. Total transportation expenditures were $759.939
million, a decrease of 1.11%. The reallocation of Powell Bill payments to municipalities to the
Highway Fund due to Session Law 2013-183 decreased expenditures in the fund by $47.55 million.
This was offset by increased expenditures in capital outlay and bond principle payments resulting in the
overall decrease.

The 2012 Report on the Condition of the State Highway System also noted that since passage of
the Highway Trust Fund in 1989, the NCDOT has paved over 13,000 miles of unpaved secondary
roads, leaving only 4,357 miles of secondary roads to be paved. In view of the fact that the paved
secondary road system has not kept up with the demands of increased urbanization and traffic, the 2006
Session of the General Assembly approved changes in the General Statutes that govern the use of
secondary road construction funds. Beginning with fiscal year 2010-11, secondary road allocations to
the counties are based on the total number of secondary road miles in that county in proportion to the
total state maintained secondary road mileage. Projects slated after July 1, 2015 will be prioritized on a
statewide basis instead of a county-wide basis.

Session Law 2013-183 amends the Highway Trust Fund allocation of resources. Scheduled to be
fully implemented by July 1, 2015, it eliminates individually legislated projects and implements a new
way for NCDOT to fund and prioritize necessary infrastructure improvements while utilizing existing
revenue sources more efficiently.
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Enterprise
Funds

The State’s enterprise funds or business-type activities provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The major enterprise funds are
discussed individually below.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

The Unemployment Compensation Fund (Trust Fund) reported net position of negative $1.564
billion at June 30, 2013 compared to negative $1.909 billion at June 30, 2012. The improvement in net
position is explained primarily by the drop in the State’s unemployment rate from 9.6% in June 2012 to
8.8% in June 2013. The Trust Fund’s operating margin (operating revenues less operating expenses)
was negative $891.32 million this year compared to negative $1.719 billion in 2012. Unemployment
benefit expenses (both state and federal) decreased 23.99% in fiscal year 2012-13 to $2.426 billion,
primarily due to claimants exhausting their maximum allowable benefits and a reduction in the number
of new initial claims.

In fiscal year 2012-13, nonoperating revenues decreased 29.61% to $1.329 billion due to a decrease
in federal funding. Federal funding is only received for expenses incurred, so the decrease in expenses
(resulting from fewer claims incurred) caused the decrease in noncapital grants revenue (reimbursement
of those expenses).

In February 2009, because of depleted cash balances, the State began borrowing from the U.S.
Treasury to ensure the uninterrupted payment of state unemployment benefits. At June 30, 2013, the
repayable advances from the State’s Federal Unemployment Account totaled $2.155 billion compared
to $2.566 billion at the previous fiscal year-end, a 16.02% decrease. For the tax year 2013, the Federal
Unemployment Tax increased by 0.6% because the State had an outstanding loan in January for three
consecutive years and did not pay back the borrowing. The funds generated from this federal tax
increase go directly towards paying down the loan (i.e., Federal unemployment account advances). The
additional federal taxes paid by the State’s employers this fiscal year, which were used to reduce the
loan balance, was $142.036 million (classified as gain on extinguishment of debt). The Federal
Unemployment Tax will increase by 0.3% for each succeeding year until the loan is repaid.

The interest rate for calendar year 2013 was 2.58%. Interest is due and payable on September 30 for
each year that the loan has an outstanding balance. The required interest payment of $62.5 million was
made on September 30, 2013. A 20% surcharge on unemployment contributions, which has been in
effect since January 1, 2005 as required by statute, remained in effect during the current fiscal year. The
surcharge is deposited into the State Reserve Fund and one of the allowable uses is to pay the interest
on the borrowing. The other allowable use is to pay benefits in lieu of borrowing. The surcharge is still
in effect because the balance in the Trust Fund has not reached the trigger “off” level.

In calendar year 2013, Session Law 2013-2 will be implemented which will begin to have a
significant impact towards decreasing the outstanding balance of the loan. This law is designed to
generate revenue (by increasing unemployment taxes on employers) and reduce expenses (by reducing
the maximum weekly benefit amount and the maximum duration of unemployment benefits) along with
making other changes that impact employers and claimants. The Law will be implemented in segments
throughout the calendar year with the full effects not being seen until calendar year 2014.

N.C. State Lottery Fund

The N.C. Education Lottery (NCEL) first began selling game tickets in 2006. As required by the
enabling legislation, net revenues of the NCEL are transferred four times a year to the General Fund.
The NCEL transferred $478.509 million to the General Fund in 2013 to support educational programs
for the State. The amount transferred in 2012 was $459.469 million. At year end, the net position of the
NCEL was zero. The NCEL has no changes in the net position from year to year.

For fiscal year 2012-13, net ticket sales increased 5.84% from the previous fiscal year to $1.69
billion. Significant financial highlights include the following: awarded $1 million or more to an NCEL
player for the 129" time; increased the number of retailers to 6,839, representing a 1% increase over the
prior year; and released 49 new instant scratch-off games into the marketplace generating gross instant
ticket sales of $1.01 billion.
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The NCEL’s 2013-14 budget provides for a projected $462 million transfer to the General Fund,
representing a 4.5% increase from the previous year’s budget. As established in the enabling legislation,
lottery funds are to be distributed for educational purposes as follows:

1. 67% to support reduction of class size in early grades and to support pre-kindergarten programs
for at-risk four-year-olds who would otherwise not be served in high quality settings.

2. 23% for public school construction.

3. 10% to the State Education Assistance Authority to fund college and university scholarships.

N.C. Turnpike Authority

The North Carolina Turnpike Authority (NCTA) was created in 2002 by the General Assembly in
response to concerns about rapid growth, heavy congestion and dwindling resources. It is authorized to
study, plan, develop, construct, operate and maintain up to nine turnpike projects. Major
accomplishments for the NCTA for fiscal year 2012-13 included the following:

e The Triangle Expressway System, the State’s first modern toll road, is approximately 18.8 miles
of new highway construction. The project was constructed and opened in three phases. The third
and final phase opened to toll traffic on January 2, 2013. The Triangle Expressway project was
delivered on schedule and under budget. During the first full quarter of toll operations (January
2013 through March 2013), toll revenues exceeded projections by 29%, while operating
expenses exceeded projections by only 1%.

e The NCTA has completed the financing for the Monroe Connector System, a 20-mile toll road
in Mecklenburg and Union counties. However, construction has been delayed due to litigation
challenging the project’s environmental documentation.

Funding for administrative expenses is being advanced as needed from the Highway Trust Fund to
be repaid from NCTA revenue collections. Interest on the advances will begin to accrue one year after
the NCTA begins collecting tolls on a completed turnpike project.

The high cost of building, operating and maintaining a major highway facility is typically more than
the revenue a new road can generate through tolls. The gap between what tolling can pay for and the
cost of the road requires additional support from the State, known as gap funding. In 2008, the General
Assembly enacted legislation authorizing annual transfers from the Highway Trust Fund to the NCTA
to pay debt service and fund required reserves on bonds issued to finance turnpike projects. For fiscal
years 2012 through 2014, the N.C. General Assembly appropriated $49 million annually for the
Triangle Expressway and Monroe Connector projects.

EPA Revolving Loan Fund

The net position of the EPA Revolving Loan Fund increased by $66.019 million or 5.33% from the
prior fiscal year-end. Operating income was $11.914 million (operating revenues less operating
expenses). Net nonoperating revenues were $55.687 million and consisted primarily of federal
capitalization grants, which were used to provide grants and loans for water infrastructure projects.
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Assets

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of June 30, 2013, the State’s investment in capital assets was $43.948 billion, an increase of
4.39% from the previous fiscal year-end (see table below).

Capital Assets as of June 30
(net of depreciation, dollars in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2012 2012
2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated)
Land and permanent easements. $15,661,789 $15,040,007 $ 154,884 $ 143,664 $15,816,673 $15,183,671
Buildings..........cccovevveiinenne 2,779,042 2,671,438 31,821 28,611 2,810,863 2,700,049
Machinery and equipment.................... 591,715 568,438 6,682 6,190 598,397 574,628
Infrastructure:
State highway system............cccceeee. 21,062,979 20,330,946 794,705 183,936 21,857,684 20,514,882
Other infrastructure 160,735 161,713 4,976 4,907 165,711 166,620
Computer SOftware...........cccceovveeveennnen. 29,016 17,198 26 45 29,042 17,243
Art, literature, and other artifacts......... 99,179 91,135 — — 99,179 91,135
Construction in progress...........c.ccoeevee. 1,948,987 1,872,244 167,671 694,181 2,116,658 2,566,425
Computer software in development...... 453,558 283,943 — — 453,558 283,943
Total..ooooiieiiciice $42,787,000 $41,037,062 $1,160,765 $ 1,061,534 $43,947,765 $42,098,596
Total percent change between
fiscal years 2012 and 2013 4.26 % 9.35 % 4.39 %

The largest component of capital assets is the state highway system. North Carolina has a 79,492

mile highway system, making it the second largest state-maintained highway system in the nation. The
most recent report on the condition of the state highway system (December 2012) noted that while the
system continues to grow, the traditional highway maintenance funds have increased, but not enough to
keep up with inflation and system growth.

The major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year included the following:
e The N.C. Department of Transportation (DOT) had construction outlays of $2.1 billion

(including land improvements) for state highway projects.

The N.C. Turnpike Authority (business-type activity) completed the final phase of the Triangle
Expressway, the State’s first modern toll road. Additionally, year-end construction in progress
for the Monroe Connector System, a toll project in eastern Mecklenburg County, was $110.4
million.

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) is constructing new psychiatric
hospitals to replace its aging state-operated psychiatric hospitals. DHHS began construction of a
new Cherry Hospital in 2010 and a new Broughton Hospital in 2012. At year-end, construction
in progress for Cherry Hospital and Broughton Hospital totaled $149 million. Also, DHHS
completed and placed into service a new facility that will house the State Laboratory of Public
Health and the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner (construction cost of $68 million). The
DHHS construction projects are being financed by special indebtedness bonds.

DHHS is replacing major legacy IT systems. NCTracks, the new multi-payer Medicaid
Management Information System, will facilitate provider enrollment, consolidate claims
processing activities, and support healthcare administration. NCFAST, the new system for
managing and administering social services benefits, will improve the way DHHS and the 100
county departments of social services conduct business. At year-end, computer software in
development for NCTracks and NCFAST totaled $357.7 million.

As further detailed in Note 21(E) to the financial statements, the State has commitments of $2.96

billion for the construction of highway infrastructure, which are expected to be financed by gasoline tax
collections, motor vehicle fees, federal funds and debt proceeds. Other commitments of $595.76 million
for the construction and improvement of state government facilities are expected to be financed
primarily by debt proceeds, state appropriations, and federal funds. More detailed information about the
State’s capital assets is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.
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Long-term
Debt

At year-end, the State had total long-term debt outstanding (bonds, special indebtedness, and notes
payable) of $8.598 billion, a decrease of 3.56% from the previous fiscal year-end (see table below).

Outstanding Debt as of June 30

Bonds, Special Indebtedness, and Notes Payable
(dollars in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

General obligation bonds....................... $3,999,580 $4,470,500 $ — $ — $3,999,580 $4,470,500
Special Indebtedness:

Lease-purchase revenue bonds.......... 20,915 30,915 — — 20,915 30,915

Certificates of participation............. 508,500 557,895 — — 508,500 557,895

Limited obligation bonds.................. 1,993,740 1,795,090 — — 1,993,740 1,795,090
GARVEE bonds.......c..cooveiiieeiiieiiiieenns 454,820 512,085 145,535 145,535 600,355 657,620

— — 1,058,458 1,081,183 1,058,458 1,081,183
39,312 35,691 377,466 286,818 416,778 322,509
$7,016,867 $7,402,176 $1,581,459 $1,513536 $8,598,326  $8,915,712

Total percent change between
fiscal years 2012 and 2013 (5.21)% 4.49 % (3.56)%

During the 2012-13 fiscal year, the State issued $250 million in limited obligation bonds reported in
governmental activities. The proceeds of the limited obligation bonds will be used to finance various
state and university capital improvement projects, which were authorized for special indebtedness
financing by previous sessions of the General Assembly. Additionally, the N.C. Turnpike Authority
(Authority), a business-type activity, had additional borrowings of $89.37 million from a federal
transportation loan. The federal loan proceeds were used to finance the remaining construction costs of
the Triangle Expressway, a toll road in Durham and Wake counties.

Additionally, the State refinanced $1.401 billion of its existing general obligation bonds reported in
governmental activities to take advantage of lower interest rates. The refinancing is expected to reduce
future debt service payments by approximately $58 million. As part of the issuances of general
obligation refunding bonds, the State terminated the remaining debt-related derivative instruments (both
basis swaps and swaptions). A portion of the proceeds of the refunding bond issues were used to pay the
cost of the terminations with the counterparties. The termination of these transactions will benefit the
State due to the fact that it will not be required to enter into a higher than market fixed rate of interest in
the future.

The State issues two types of tax-supported debt: general obligation bonds and various types of
“special indebtedness” (i.e., debt not subject to a vote of the people). General obligation bonds are
secured by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State and require approval by a majority of
voters. The payments on special indebtedness are subject to appropriation by the General Assembly and
may also be secured by a lien on facilities or equipment. The General Statutes (Chapter 142, Article 9)
prohibit the issuance of special indebtedness except for projects specifically authorized by the General
Assembly. Different forms of special indebtedness, also known as appropriation-supported debt, are
authorized. One form, “financing contract indebtedness™ includes lease-purchase revenue bonds and
certificates of participation and has been used by the State historically. The other form is limited
obligation bonds, which may be issued by the State directly rather than through the N.C. Infrastructure
Finance Corporation, a conduit issuer. The use of alternative financing methods provides financing
flexibility to the State and permits the State to take advantage of changing financial and economic
environments. The GARVEEs are a revenue bond-type debt instrument where the debt service is to be
paid solely from federal transportation revenues.

The State’s total long-term debt (bonds, special indebtedness, and notes payable) has increased
significantly in recent years, rising from $3.478 billion in 2002 to $8.598 billion in 2013, in part due to
large issuances for higher education capital projects. Prior to 2003, the State only issued general
obligation debt. The following is a summary of recent debt authorizations.
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Special Indebtedness

The 2009-10 Session of the General Assembly reduced special indebtedness authorizations for
various projects by over $115 million to generate additional debt capacity and increased authorizations
for guaranteed energy savings contracts by $400 million. The 2008-09 Session of the General Assembly
authorized the issuance of $734.03 million of special indebtedness as follows: $512.22 million for
higher education projects, $109.09 million for correctional facilities, $50 million for acquiring state
park lands and conservation areas, and $62.72 million for other state projects. The 2007-08 Session of
the General Assembly authorized the issuance of special indebtedness as follows: $481.14 million for
higher education projects and $188.01 million for other purposes. The 2006-07 Session of the General
Assembly authorized the issuance of $672.1 million of special indebtedness as follows: $429.3 for
psychiatric hospitals and a public health laboratory for the Department of Health and Human Services,
$132.2 million for medical and mental health centers for the Department of Correction, and $110.6
million for other state and university projects.

Repair and Renovation Authorization

The 2002-03 Session of the General Assembly authorized the issuance of $300 million of special
indebtedness to finance the repair and renovation of state facilities and related infrastructure that are
supported by the State’s General Fund. Of the $300 million, approximately $157 million was allocated
to the University of North Carolina (UNC) System. Each of the 16 constituent institutions of the UNC
System received a portion of the proceeds for repairs and renovations. The remaining $143 million of
the proceeds was used to make repairs and renovations to various state facilities. The State has issued
all of the authorized repair and renovation debt.

Higher Education Authorization

The 1999-00 Session of the General Assembly authorized the issuance of $3.1 billion of higher
education improvement bonds, which were subsequently approved by the voters of the State. The $3.1
billion bond authorization represents the largest debt authorization in the State’s history. The proceeds
of these general obligation bonds were used solely to construct new buildings and to renovate and
modernize existing buildings on the State's 58 community college and 16 University of North Carolina
campuses. These improvements were needed to meet enrollment demands and to ensure that the State’s
college and university buildings meet modern code requirements and are equipped to prepare graduates
for 21st century jobs. The bond legislation passed by the General Assembly specifies the amount of
bond funding that flows to each community college and university campus. The State has issued all of
the authorized higher education bonds.

Clean Water and Natural Gas Authorization

The 1997-98 Session of the General Assembly authorized the issuance of $1 billion of clean water
and natural gas general obligation bonds, which were subsequently approved by the voters of the State.
The bonds proceeds were used to provide grants and loans to local governments for clean water projects
($800 million) and to provide grants and loans for construction of natural gas facilities to facilitate the
expansion of natural gas service to unserved areas of the State ($200 million). The State has issued all
of the authorized clean water and natural gas bonds.

Highway Bond Authorization

The 1995-96 Session of the General Assembly authorized the issuance of $950 million of highway
general obligation bonds, which were subsequently approved by the voters of the State. The bond
proceeds were allocated to pay capital costs for urban loops ($500 million), highways in the Intrastate
System ($300 million), and for paving unpaved roads of the secondary highway system ($150 million).
The State has issued all of the authorized highway bonds.

Credit Ratings

Credit ratings are the rating agencies’ assessment of a governmental entity’s ability and willingness
to repay debt on a timely basis. Credit ratings are an important factor in the public credit markets and
can influence interest rates a borrower must pay. The State’s general obligation bond credit ratings are
as follows:
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State of North Carolina
General Obligation Bond Credit Ratings

Rating Agency Rating Outlook
Fitch Ratings AAA Stable
Moody’s Investors Service Aaa Stable
Standard & Poor’s Rating Services AAA Stable

These ratings are the highest attainable from all three rating agencies. In January 2013, all three
rating agencies affirmed the triple-A credit rating for the State. A triple-A credit rating means that North
Carolina has followed well-defined financial management policies and has demonstrated strong debt
management practices. The rating agencies recognized the State’s historically conservative budgeting,
financial management, and debt issuance practices. North Carolina remains one of only nine states with
a triple-A rating from all three rating agencies.

Special indebtedness is not subject to a vote of the people and its repayment is based on the State’s
annual debt service appropriation. For these reasons, special indebtedness is rated lower than the State’s
general obligation bonds and typically carries a higher interest rate.

Limitations on Debt

The Constitution of North Carolina (Article 5, Section 3) imposes limitations upon the increase of
certain state debt. It restricts the General Assembly from contracting debts secured by a pledge of the
faith and credit of the State, unless approved by a majority of the qualified voters of the State, except
for the following purposes:

1. To fund or refund a valid existing debt;

2. To supply an unforeseen deficiency in the revenue;

3. To borrow in anticipation of the collection of taxes due and payable within the current fiscal year to
an amount not exceeding 50 percent of such taxes;

4. To suppress riots or insurrections; or to repel invasions;

5. To meet emergencies immediately threatening the public health or safety, as conclusively
determined in writing by the Governor; and

6. For any other lawful purpose, to the extent of two-thirds of the amount by which the State’s
outstanding indebtedness shall have been reduced during the preceding biennium.

The 2013-14 Session of the General Assembly enacted legislation (Session Law 2013-78) to limit
the amount of special indebtedness that the State may incur. According to this law, special indebtedness
authorized by legislation enacted after January 1, 2013 cannot exceed 25% of the total bond
indebtedness of the State supported by the General Fund that was authorized pursuant to legislation
enacted after January 1, 2013.

More detailed information about the State’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 8 to the
financial statements.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The 2013 Session of the General Assembly enacted a $20.6 billion budget for fiscal year 2013-14, a
1.98% increase from appropriation expenditures for fiscal year 2012-13. The General Assembly also
enacted a variety of major tax changes (Session Law 2013-316). Individual income tax rates will be
reduced from current rates (6%, 7%, and 7.75%) to a single rate of 5.8% in 2014 and 5.75% in 2015.
Corporate income tax rates will be reduced from 6.9% to 6% in 2014 and 5% in 2015. If state revenue
targets are met, the corporate income tax rate will be further reduced to 4% in 2016 and 3% in 2017.
The sales tax was expanded to include electricity, piped natural gas, some service contracts, and
entertainment activities. In addition, a number of special exemptions and preferential rates were
repealed. The estate tax was also repealed effective January 1, 2013.

State Health Plan

The Board of Trustees of the State Health Plan for Teachers and State Employees approved benefit
changes to increase member options, encourage member engagement in healthy lifestyles, and constrain
future State Health Plan costs. The new options will go into effect January 1, 2014 and resulted in a
$4.6 billion reduction in the State’s actuarial accrued liability for other postemployment benefits as of
the December 31, 2012 valuation.

Prison Closings

In connection with the Justice Reinvestment Act (Session Law 2011-192), five prisons are scheduled
to close during the 2013-14 fiscal year. This act made significant changes in the sentencing laws and
correctional policies of the State. The intent of this legislation was to reduce spending on incarceration
and to redirect the savings into community-based treatment alternatives that are proven to reduce
criminality.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the North Carolina Office of the State Controller, Accounting and Financial
Reporting Section, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, N.C. 27699-1410. In addition, this financial
report is available on the Office of the State Controller’s internet home page at
http://www.osc.nc.gov/financial/index.html .
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3).........ccccceeeviiiiniiieiiineen.
Investments (Note 3)
Securities lending collateral (Note 3)..........cccccovciiiniiiiiiieenns
Receivables, net (NOte 4)........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Due from component units (Note 18)
Due from primary government (Note 18).........c.cccceevieienineenne
Internal balances............ccoociiiiiiiiiii
Inventories
Prepaid items........cooiiii
Advances to component units
Notes receivable, net (Note 4)
Investment in joint venture..........ccccoooiiiiii
Equity interest in component unit.............ccccooeiiniic,
Deferred charges
Securities held in trust..........cccoiiii
Pension assets (NOte 12).........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie e
Restricted/designated cash and cash equivalents (Note 3).....
Restricted investments (Note 3).........coocoieiiiiiiiiieeiiiee e
Restricted due from primary government (Note 18)................
Restricted due from component units (Note 18)
Capital assets-nondepreciable (Note 5)...........cccocvevriieiennnen.
Capital assets-depreciable, net (Note 5).........cccccecveeiiiierennnn.

Total ASSELS ..o

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives.....
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources..........cccccceeeiiiiiieeeeenne

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..............cccccoeeee..
Medical claims payable..............ccccceeeee
Unemployment benefits payable.
Tax refunds payable...........c.ccceeene.
Obligations under securities lending...
Interest payable...........cocvieeiiiiniinnns
Short-term debt (Note 6).................
Due to component units (Note 18).........
Due to primary government (Note 18)
Unearned revenue..............ccccceeeneeee.
Advance from primary government ...
Deposits payable...........ccccveeeeeiininns
Funds held for others...........ccccccevnnene
Hedging derivatives liability (Note 7).........ccccoeeeiiieiiniiiien
Long-term liabilities (Note 8):

Due Within ONe Year..........cc.ueeiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Due in more than one year....

Total LiabilitieS........uuveeeeeeieeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 3,876,113 542,905 4,419,018 3,453,373
243,124 156,755 399,879 2,769,715
519,574 95,379 614,953 —
3,717,204 649,959 4,367,163 1,201,752
1,908 — 1,908 14,505
— — — 167,338

43,803 (43,803) — —
194,380 1,470 195,850 119,785
1,102 5,130 6,232 85,696
3,441 — 3,441 _
89,468 939,711 1,029,179 3,983,341
— — — 47,967
163,748 — 163,748 —
— 29,083 29,083 37,535

49,508 — 49,508 —
4,831 — 4,831 —
446,261 1,764 448,025 2,239,869
517,656 857,497 1,375,153 5,134,310
_ _ — 44,359
— — — 5,967
18,163,513 322,555 18,486,068 2,020,951
24,623,487 838,210 25,461,697 13,304,490
52,659,121 4,396,615 57,055,736 34,630,953
_ — — 120,090

— — — 120,090
1,920,826 152,001 2,072,827 955,888
914,053 — 914,053 245,331
— 31,241 31,241 —
1,441,372 — 1,441,372 —
528,877 98,088 626,965 —
70,902 79,473 150,375 67,800

— — — 45,655
211,697 — 211,697 20,472

— — — 1,908
437,938 31,759 469,697 327,203

— — — 3,441

3,750 1,103 4,853 14,615
85,106 — 85,106 2,067,781

— — — 120,090
624,675 1,324,087 1,948,762 606,038
8,226,436 2,500,145 10,726,581 8,220,940
14,465,632 4,217,897 18,683,529 12,697,162
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013 Exhibit A-1

(Dollars in Thousands)

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets...........cccccooecvvieeecieiciieeee e, 40,432,694 410,050 40,842,744 10,970,141
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable:

Environment and natural resources...........cccccveveveveeeeenen. 90,676 — 90,676 —
Higher education............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiice e 549 — 549 2,220,937
Expendable:
Primary and secondary education.............ccccceeevieeeniinnenn. 9,000 — 9,000 —
Higher education............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiie e 389,024 — 389,024 3,223,147
Health and human services... 16,997 — 16,997 19
Economic development...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 45,298 — 45,298 798,429
Environment and natural resources.............ccccveveeeeecnnnnes 45,064 — 45,064 —
Public safety, corrections, and regulation......................... 59,612 — 59,612 —
Transportation...........ueeeiiieeiiiiiiieiiieeeeee e 9,864 — 9,864 —
Other purposes..... 126,882 995 127,877 —
Unrestricted............. (3,032,171) (232,327) (3,264,498) 4,841,208
Total Net POSItioN..........ccoviiiiiiie e $ 38,193,489 $ 178,718 $ 38,372,207 $ 22,053,881

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General goVerNMENt...........ccoveeeereiieie e e $ 990,505 $§ 228,054 $ 37,006 $ 5276 $ (720,169)
Primary and secondary education..... 9,830,897 18,416 1,562,585 — (8,249,896)
Higher education...........cccccocveeeinneen. 4,027,721 113,424 28,358 — (3,885,939)
Health and human services..... 18,258,538 331,559 13,144,841 — (4,782,138)
Economic development..................... 595,494 29,584 364,751 — (201,159)
Environment and natural resources...... 493,775 138,562 59,227 15,885 (280,101)
Public safety, corrections, and regulation.... 2,945,856 604,447 214,332 2,356 (2,124,721)
Transportation...........cccoceeeeiiiiiiieee e 2,491,032 706,231 317,580 978,299 (488,922)
Agriculture...........ccoceeciennens 187,718 30,627 31,013 9,073 (117,005)
Interest on long-term debt.............. 233,325 — — — (233,325)
Total Governmental Activities.............ccccceeee.. 40,054,861 2,200,904 15,759,693 1,010,889 (21,083,375)
Business-type Activities:
Unemployment Compensation............cccceeevcreeennnnn. 2,496,445 1,535,068 1,329,277 — 367,900
N.C. State Lottery........ccccvviiriiiiiiiciciee e 1,215,944 1,695,009 444 — 479,509
EPA Revolving Loan 23,711 19,490 71,822 — 67,601
N.C. Turnpike Authority..........cccooveriviiiiiniinieeee, 77,899 13,499 14,262 13,529 (36,609)
Regulatory programs............cccceeeeeeriiiieeeeesnieeennnn 76,455 78,561 1,326 — 3,432
Insurance programs 17,591 19,275 5,135 — 6,819
North Carolina State Fair............cccccceeiiiiiveiiniininn, 13,465 14,506 400 — 1,441
Other business-type activities.............cccocceeeiiiennns 13,400 10,681 860 7,580 5,721
Total Business-type Activities.... 3,934,910 3,386,089 1,423,526 21,109 895,814
Total Primary Government..........ccoceeveieneneenieneens $ 43,989,771 $ 5,586,993 §$ 17,183,219 $ 1,031,998 § (20,187,561)
Component Units:
University of North Carolina System................ccc......... $ 9914064 $ 6,339,500 $ 1,418,809 $ 242284 $ (1,913,471)
Community Colleges 2,230,808 321,301 924,761 195,944 (788,802)
State Health Plan............cccooiiiiiiiiee 2,653,980 2,904,577 63,132 — 313,729
Other component UNits..........cccvvivereiieeiieneeeeeeen 1,111,353 555,963 567,617 8,875 21,102
Total Component UNits...........cccceerviiiieniiiiicnieiieeees $ 15,910,205 § 10,121,341 § 2,974,319 $ 447,103 $ (2,367,442)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Changes in Net Position:
Net (expense) revenue

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual income taX...........ccccvvvevvveveveneiiiiiiieiiiiinnens
Corporate iNCOMEe taX..........cccuvvveeeeeiiiriiereeeeeeeiiines
Sales and use tax.........
Gasoline tax...........
Franchise tax..........
Highway use tax.....
Insurance tax..........
Beverage tax.......
Inheritance tax..............
Tobacco products tax....
Other taxes..........cc.u....
Tobacco settlement.......................
Unrestricted investment earnings.........
State aid........cccoeeeviie
Miscellaneous..........cccccoevcvneenn.
Contributions to permanent funds...
Contributions to endowments..........
TraNSTEIS.....vvieie i

Total general revenues, contributions, and transfers.......
Change in net position...........ccocevviiiiiiic i,
Net position — July 1, as restated (Note 23)...................
Net position — June 30........c.ccccoiniiiiiiiiiini e

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (21,083,375) $ 895,814 $(20,187,561) $ (2,367,442)
11,113,597 — 11,113,597 —
1,194,850 — 1,194,850 —
5,556,484 — 5,556,484 —
1,889,439 — 1,889,439 —
849,850 — 849,850 —
555,581 — 555,581 —
540,844 — 540,844 —
330,918 — 330,918 —
113,721 — 113,721 —
287,340 — 287,340 —
305,726 — 305,726 —
213,078 — 213,078 —
13,621 — 13,621 —
— — — 3,640,788
44,837 7 44,844 2,543
2,834 — 2,834 —
— — — 150,554
448,733 (448,733) — —
23,461,453 (448,726) 23,012,727 3,793,885
2,378,078 447,088 2,825,166 1,426,443
35,815,411 (268,370) 35,547,041 20,627,438
$ 38,193,489 $ 178,718 $ 38,372,207 $ 22,053,881
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State of North Carolina

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2013 Exhibit B-1
(Dollars in Thousands)
Highway Other Total
General Highway Trust Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)............ccccevevevererenenn. $ 1995553 $ 474531  $ 597,886 $ 714752 $ 3,782,722
Investments (NOte 3)......cooouuiiiiiiiiiiee e 4,902 — — 209,667 214,569
Securities lending collateral (Note 3)...........ccccvvieiiiieeennnne. 339,922 44,872 53,289 76,221 514,304
Receivables, net: (Note 4)

Taxes receivable..........cccoiiiiiiiiii 1,908,438 135,345 43,469 2,145 2,089,397

Accounts receivable 236,899 20,052 82 20,574 277,607

Intergovernmental receivable.............ccccoviiiiiieiiiicenne. 1,216,211 84,768 — 1,456 1,302,435

Interest receivable...................ooooii i, 4,669 215 190 299 5,373

Other receivables — 3,768 — — 3,768
Due from other funds (Note 10).........cccceviiiiiiiinnicceeee. 28,269 8,112 — 7,025 43,406
Due from component units (Note 18)..........ccccoeieiiiiiiennnen. 169 — — 1,014 1,183
Inventories 75,153 89,484 — 29,398 194,035
Advances to other funds (Note 10).........ccccceeeiiieniiiicennen. — — 23,606 — 23,606
Advances to component UNits..........cccooeiceieieeeniiiiiiiee e — 3,441 — — 3,441
Notes receivable, net (Note 4) 47,980 789 62 40,637 89,468
Securities held intrust............ooovvvveiiiiiiiiii 400 3,611 — 45,497 49,508
Restricted/designated cash and cash equivalents (Note 3).. 227,520 — — 218,741 446,261
Restricted investments (Note 3).........ccoccveiiiiiiiieiiniiccs — 40,523 — 477,133 517,656
Total ASSEES......iiiiiiiiericeee e $ 6,086,085 § 909,511  § 718,584 $§ 1,844559 $ 9,558,739
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Accounts Payable.........ccceiieieiieiee e $ 546,477 $ 248,246 $ 32,669 $ 38,150 $ 865,542

Accrued payroll 4,078 40,450 — 191 44,719

Intergovernmental payable...........ccccooiiiieiiiie e 642,497 176,480 — 5,727 824,704

Claims payable..........ccooiiiiiiiie e — — — 50,690 50,690
Medical claims payable.. 914,053 — — — 914,053
Tax refunds payable...........ccoooiiiiiiiiii e, 1,436,997 3,281 1,094 — 1,441,372
Obligations under securities lending...........ccccceevcieieeernnnnes 346,088 44,751 55,770 76,918 523,527
Due to fiduciary funds (Note 10) 86,379 12,214 — — 98,593
Due to other funds (Note 10).........coeeeiiiiiiiiieeeeiieeee e 26,861 4,605 8,038 358 39,862
Due to component units (Note 18)..........ccccceeiiieiiiienenieenn. 169,937 — — 41,760 211,697
Deferred revenue 609,229 27,321 260 28,843 665,653
Deposits payable 3,746 — — 4 3,750
Funds held for others...........cccoooieiiiiieic e 19,808 19,703 — 45,595 85,106
Total Liabilities.......ccoverrieiieiee e 4,806,150 577,051 97,831 288,236 5,769,268
Fund Balances (Note 11):
Nonspendable...........cccceriiiiieiiiiiece e 75,153 89,484 — 120,823 285,460
RESHCE. ... 130,411 43,387 — 819,931 993,729
COMMILLE.......eeieiiiiieiei e 884,593 199,589 620,753 614,791 2,319,726
Assigned 30,957 — — 778 31,735
UNASSIGNEA. ......eiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 158,821 — — — 158,821
Total Fund Balances...........cccoooueiiiiiiiiiiciieiccee e 1,279,935 332,460 620,753 1,556,323 3,789,471
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,086,085 § 909,511  § 718,584 $§ 1,844559 $ 9,558,739

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of North Carolina

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013

Exhibit B-1a

(Dollars in Thousands)

Total fund balances - governmental funds (see Exhibit B-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
because:

- Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds (see Note 5). These consist of:
Cost of capital assets (excluding internal service funds)...........cccoiieiiiiiiiiiii e
Less: Accumulated depreciation (excluding internal service funds)..........cccocceeinieiinieneninen.
NEt CAPITAl @SSELS. ... .uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e e et e et e teaeeeaeaeeaaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaes

- Some assets, such as receivables, are not available soon enough to pay for current
period expenditures and thus, are offset by deferred revenue in the governmental funds.

Equity interest in component unit is not a financial resource and, therefore, is not
reported in the funds.

- Pension assets, resulting from contributions in excess of the annual required
contribution are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds (see Note 12).

- Long-term debt instruments, such as bonds and notes payable, are not due and

payable in the current period and, therefore, the outstanding balances are not reported

in the funds (see Note 8). Also, unamortized debt premiums and losses on refundings

are reported in the Statement of Net Position but are not reported in the funds.

These balances consist of:
General obligation bonds payable..............coouiiiiiiiii e
Lease-purchase revenue bonds payable.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Certificates of participation payable..............cooiiiiiiiiii e
Limited obligation bonds payable.............ooouiiiiiiii e
GARVEE bONdS PAYADIE. ... .uiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e
Unamortized debt premiums (to be amortized as interest expense)
Less: Unamortized loss on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense).............cccoc......
NOES PAYADIE. ...
Capital leases payable (excluding internal service funds)............cccooeiiiiiiiniie i,

Net [oNG-term debt...... ..o e

- Other liabilities not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, not reported
in the funds (see Note 8 as applicable) consist of:

Accrued interest PaYabIE. .........oooi i
Compensated absences (excluding internal service funds)...........ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e
Obligations for workers' compensation
Deferred death benefit payable..............oooiiiiiii e
Pollution remediation payable.............cuueiiiiiiiii s
Claims and judgments payable..............c.cooiiiiiiiiiiii e
Net PensSioN OBIGAtION. .......ccuiiiiiie e

Total other labilities.............oooii e

- Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (see Exhibit B-3).

Total net position - governmental activities (see Exhibit A-1)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 43,319,015

(620,560)

(3,999,580)
(20,915)
(508,500)
(1,993,740)
(454,820)
(623,105)
133,808
(39,312)

(18,929)

(70,902)
(419,773)
(150,251)

(400)
(6,277)
(741,703)
(1,227)

$ 3,789,471

42,698,455

234,792

163,748

4,831

(7,525,093)

(1,390,533)

217,818

$ 38,193,489
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 Exhibit B-2
(Dollars in Thousands)
Highway Other Total
General Highway Trust Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual income tax...........ccoeoeereenieiieennn. $ 11,111,462 $ — $ — $ 2,135 $ 11,113,597
Corporate income tax 1,224,702 — — — 1,224,702
Sales and use tax........ 5,554,065 — — 8,109 5,562,174
GasOliNe taX....ceuuereeiiiee e — 1,397,312 465,938 25,154 1,888,404
Franchise tax.......ccccccovveviiii 857,867 — — — 857,867
Highway use tax.... — — 555,581 — 555,581
Insurance tax...........cooeeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeceee, 521,510 — — 19,334 540,844
Beverage taX.......ccccovvieeiiiiieiiee e 330,711 — — — 330,711
Inheritance tax................ 111,510 — — — 111,510
Tobacco products tax 283,629 — — — 283,629
Other taxes.................. 156,797 — — 148,221 305,018
Federal funds...........ccooiieiiiiiiiie e 14,878,307 1,191,752 — 83,572 16,153,631
Local funds.......coouveiieiiieieseceesee e 158,413 21,947 446 5,521 186,327
Investment earnings 24,713 5,200 2,650 8,694 41,257
Interest earnings on loans...........ccccoceveviieens 2,883 26 — 775 3,684
Sales and ServiCes........ccooveeeiieeiiiee e 140,683 3,505 — 159,991 304,179
Rental and lease of property. 10,304 11,157 2,536 3,562 27,559
Fees, licenses, and fines..........cccccceeveeeninnnne 724,026 570,932 95,060 184,709 1,574,727
Tobacco settlement................ooooeeiiiiiiiiiiiicnn, 211,162 — — — 211,162
Contributions, gifts, and grants.... 21,487 6,194 546 46,630 74,857
Funds escheated.................. — — — 112,671 112,671
Federal recovery funds......... 182,756 64,102 — 26,334 273,192
Miscellaneous...........cccoevereerieiieeseecee e 126,065 20,293 5,124 33,281 184,763
Total revenues.........ccocceeeiiiieinieeeieeeee 36,633,052 3,292,420 1,127,881 868,693 41,922,046
Expenditures:
Current:
General government...........ccccoevieeeiiieeeninenns 905,962 — — 39,740 945,702
Primary and secondary education..............ccoccceeennn. 9,818,572 — — — 9,818,572
Higher education............ccccooiiiiiiiniiee, 3,843,736 — — 184,034 4,027,770
Health and human services... 18,336,915 — — 79,314 18,416,229
Economic development..................... 529,412 — — 41,625 571,037
Environment and natural resources 282,073 — — 173,821 455,894
Public safety, corrections, and regulation 2,658,145 — — 241,142 2,899,287
Transportation..........cococcereeeniciiiee e — 3,313,785 678,409 6 3,992,200
Agriculture 155,819 — — 15,377 171,196
Capital outlay..........cccovoveriiiieiiceeeeen — — — 182,107 182,107
Debt service:
Principal retirement............cccocoviiiiiiinnnnn. 1,138,281 57,265 62,253 3,886 1,261,685
Interest and fees......... 418,924 23,388 19,234 193 461,739
Debt issuance costs.... 5,724 — 43 838 6,605
Total expenditures..........ccccoeeeviiieiiiieennnen. 38,093,563 3,394,438 759,939 962,083 43,210,023
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures (1,460,511) (102,018) 367,942 (93,390) (1,287,977)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Special indebtedness issued..............cccccoeeenne — — — 250,000 250,000
Refunding bonds issued 1,320,970 — — — 1,320,970
Other debt issued.............ceeeveeeeeeeeiiiiiiieiiieeeens 9,380 — — — 9,380
Premium on debt issued...............oocoiiriiniinins 254,943 — — 29,485 284,428
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (748,022) — — — (748,022)
Sale of capital assets..... 7,301 4,891 505 242 12,939
Insurance recoveries...... 3,198 6,656 — 71 9,925
Transfers in (Note 10)........cccevoveiieiiniiieree. 943,135 63,205 — 106,364 1,112,704
Transfers out (Note 10)........cccceeeiiiiiiieniinnn. (99,428) (269,347) (129,423) (152,997) (651,195)
Total other financing sources (uses)... 1,691,477 (194,595) (128,918) 233,165 1,601,129
Net change in fund balances..............cccccoe.e.. 230,966 (296,613) 239,024 139,775 313,152
Fund balances — July 1, as restated (Note 23) 1,048,969 629,073 381,729 1,416,548 3,476,319
Fund balances — June 30.........ccccoevveriennrnnne. $ 1,279,935 $ 332,460 $ 620,753 $ 1,556,323 $ 3,789,471

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of North Carolina

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Exhibit B-2a

(Dollars in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (see Exhibit B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

- Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlays (including construction-in-progress) ...........cccccocvieiriiieniiie e $ 2,530,509

Less: Depreciation expense (excluding internal service funds) ..........cccccceeiviiiiiiiiicinceneen. (747,037)

Net capital outlay adjustment ..o

- Proceeds from the sale of capital assets increase financial resources in the funds,
whereas in the Statement of Activities only the gain or loss on the sale is reported. This
adjustment reduces the proceeds by the book value of the capital assets sold.

- Donations of capital ts do not appear in the governmental funds because they
are not financial resources, but increase net position in the Statement of Activities.

- Derivative termination payments to counterparties consume financial resources of
governmental funds but have no effect on net position.

- Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the related debt principal consumes those financial resources.
These transactions, however, have no effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. In the current period,
these amounts consist of:

Debt issued or incurred:

Bonds and similar debt iSSUE ...........coooiiiiiiiiii e (259,380)
Refunding bonds issued ........ . (1,320,970)
Premiums on debt issued (284,428)
Principal repayments:
Bonds, notes, and similar debt ...............ouvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 1,260,188
Capital leases (excluding internal service funds) ..........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiic e 1,497
Payments to escrow agent for refundings 748,022
Net debt adjuSTMENTS .......cuiiiiii e
- Some revenues in the Statement of Activities do not provide current financial
resources and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. Also, revenues related to prior
periods that became available during the current period are reported in the funds but
are eliminated in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net adjustment.
Changes in fair value of investment derivatives are not current financial resources
in governmental funds but are recognized in the Statement of Activities
Change in equity interest of component unit resulting from capital contributions
and net income of component unit are not current financial resources, and therefore,
are not recognized in the funds.
- Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not recognized in the funds. Also,
some payments related to prior periods are recognized in the funds but are eliminated
in the Statement of Activities. In the current period, the net adjustments consist of:
ACCIUEA INTEIESE ... e 6,911
Compensated absences (excluding internal service funds) .........cccccooeiiiiiiiii i (16,341)
Workers' compensation ............cccccoeveiiiinieniieiee e, (13,519)
Deferred death benefit 110
Claims and judgments (10,000)
Net pension obligation 2,638
Pollution remediation 208
Amortization of deferred @amoUuNts ..., 96,686

Net EXPENSE ACCTUAIS ......ccouiiiiiiiie et

- Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The net revenues of internal service funds are
included with governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (see Exhibit B-4).

Change in net position - governmental activities (see Exhibit A-2)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 313,152

1,783,472

(37,171)
311

124,910

144,929

(23,054)

206

4,825

66,693

(195)

$ 2,378,078
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3).........ccccceeriiiiiiicennnen.
Investments (NOtE 3).......occueiiiiiiiiiiii e
Securities lending collateral (Note 3).........cccccceeviiiiiiicennne.
Receivables: (Note 4)

Accounts receivable, net...................cc,

Intergovernmental receivable..............ccccociiiiiiiiiiiiieee,

Interest receivable.............cooeiiiiiiiii

Premiums receivable............. e —————

Contributions receivable, net.............ccocoeiiiiiiiiiees
Notes receivable, net (Note 4)..........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee
Due from other funds (Note 10)........c.ccevveieiiiiiiiiiiiiiecee
Due from component units (Note 18)..
INVENTOMIES. ...t e e e
Prepaid itemsS.....coooeieeeeee
Restricted/designated cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)..

Total current @ssets...........oeveiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Noncurrent Assets:
Investments (NOte 3)......ccccueiiiiiiiiiiii e
Receivables: (Note 4)

Contributions receivable, net............cccocoeeiiiiiiieiiniiees
Notes receivable, net (Note 4)..........cccoveiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiices
Deferred charges..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiceee e
Restricted investments (Note 3)................
Capital assets-nondepreciable (Note 5)....
Capital assets-depreciable, net (Note 5) ..

Total noncurrent @assets............covevviiiieiiiiiiiiiieeee s

Total ASSetS....ocooviieeeieeiii

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Accounts payable..........cccoiiiiiiiiii
Accrued payroll..........c.ccoc....
Intergovernmental payable....
Claims payable............cccccneee.
Unemployment benefits payable............ccccoooeiiiiiiiiennn.
Obligations under securities lending.............cccoceiiiiiinineen.
Interest payable
Due to fiduciary funds (Note 10)..........cccceeiiiiiiniiiiiieceee.
Due to other funds (Note 10)........cccceeviiieiiiiiiiiiiie e
Unearned revenue e
Deposits payable..........coocuuiiiiiiiiiii e
Annuity and life income payable (Note 8).....
Notes payable (Note 8).......c..ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Capital leases payable (Note 8)..........cceovviiiiiiiiiiieiiiiicens
Bonds payable (Note 8)
Federal unemployment account advances (Note 8)..............
Compensated absences (Note 8).........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiniieene
Total current liabilities............cccccviiiiiiii e

Business-type Activities —
Enterprise Funds

Unemployment EPA N.C. State N.C.
Compensation Revolving Loan Lottery Turnpike
Fund Fund Fund Authority
$ 94,617 $ 363,022 32,485 1,099
— — 4,154 —
7,889 32,136 4,830 40,723
80,277 — 17,619 4,928
12,779 33 155 1,154
29 3,487 18 —
482,052 — — —
— 67,239 — —
8,255 — — —
— — — 957
— — 381 —
— — — 1,712
685,898 465,917 59,642 50,573
— — 49,666 —
43,383 — — —
— 872,355 — —
— — 1,042 28,038
— — — 857,497
— — — 310,116
— 62 898 794,705
43,383 872,417 51,606 1,990,356
729,281 1,338,334 111,248 2,040,929
12,220 119 23,572 2,952
— — 431 —
32,869 — — 52
31,241 — — —
8,125 32,897 4,760 42,312
49,000 — — 30,473
— — — 1,862
954 32 27,317 76
4,082 — — —
_ — — 1,091
— — 4,154 —
— — — 19,150
1,300,000 — — —
— 21 291 4
1,438,491 33,069 60,525 97,972
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Governmental
Activities —
Other Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds
$ 51,682 $ 542,905 93,391
94,532 98,686 28,555
9,801 95,379 5,270
945 103,769 12,760
— 14,121 —
51 3,585 9
3,049 3,049 94
— 482,052 —
3 67,242 —
— 8,255 17,736
— — 725
513 1,470 345
4,749 5,130 1,102
52 1,764 —
165,377 1,427,407 159,987
8,403 58,069 —
— 43,383 —
114 872,469 —
3 29,083 —
— 857,497 —
12,439 322,555 3,396
42,545 838,210 85,149
63,504 3,021,266 88,545
228,881 4,448,673 248,532
2,710 41,573 7,757
269 700 1,939
3 32,924 2
26,541 26,541 1,119
— 31,241 —
9,994 98,088 5,350
— 79,473 —
— 1,862 —
73 28,452 1,083
27,677 31,759 7,077
12 1,103 —
— 4,154 —
197 197 —
— — 123
— 19,150 —
— 1,300,000 —
270 586 315
67,746 1,697,803 24,765
Continued
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accounts payable............oocuiiiiiiiiii e

Advances from other funds (Note 10).......

Annuity and life income payable (Note 8)

Notes payable (Note 8)...........ccocviiriiieiinnn.

Capital leases payable (Note 8).........ccceevvieiiiiiiiiieiiiiieee

Bonds payable, net (Note 8)...........coociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee

Federal unemployment account advances (Note 8)..

Compensated absences (Note 8).........cocveeiviiiiiiiiiiiieeenns
Total noncurrent liabilities..............ccooceiiiiiiiiiis
Total Liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets............cccceeeeeeiiiiiiiccccceceee
Restricted for:
Capital OUtIaY......ccueieiiiie e
Other purposes
UNrestricted. ... ..o
Total Net Position

Business-type Activities —
Enterprise Funds

Unemployment EPA N.C. State N.C.

Compensation Revolving Loan Lottery Turnpike
Fund Fund Fund Authority

— — — 48,384

— — — 23,606

— — 49,666 —

— — — 372,877

— — — 1,211,608

854,771 — — —

— 539 1,057 59

854,771 539 50,723 1,656,534

2,293,262 33,608 111,248 1,754,506

— 62 898 358,684

(1,563,981) 1,304,664 (898) (72,261)

$ (1,563,981) §$ 1,304,726 $ — $ 286,423

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Activities —

Other Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds

17 48,401 —
— 23,606 —

— 49,666 —

4,392 377,269 —
— — 323

— 1,211,608 —

— 854,771 —
5,176 6,831 5,626
9,585 2,572,152 5,949
77,331 4,269,955 30,714
50,406 410,050 88,099

52 52 —

943 943 —
100,149 (232,327) 129,719
$ 151,550 $ 178,718 $ 217,818
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Employer unemployment contributions...........
Federal funds.........cccccoooiiiniiiiiiiice.
Sales and services...................
Student tuition and fees, net.....
Interest earnings on loans.....
Rental and lease earnings. .
Fees, licenses, and fines...........ccccceevieeennnn.
Toll revenuEs...........coeveiiiiiiiiieeeeiee e
Insurance premiums e —
Miscellaneous............ccccoeueeene

Total operating revenues.............cccccceene

Operating Expenses:
Personal services..........ccccovviiieiiiiiiiiieeeeeee
Supplies and materials............cccccerniieninnenn.
SEIVICES. ..ciiiiiieiiiie et
Cost of goods sold...
Depreciation.............
Lottery prizes.....
Claims......ccocooeeieeennnen.
Unemployment benefits..... e ———
Insurance and bonding...

Total operating expenses............cccccvueeee...
Operating income (I0SS).........cccccovveeennnee.
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Noncapital grants...........ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiniiees
Noncapital gifts, net
Investment earnings...........cccoocveeiiieiiniecenn
Interest and fees........c.oooeeeiiiiiiiii i
Insurance recoveries
Grants, aid and subsidies.............ccccoeveeeennnen.
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment.....................
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Federal interest subsidy on debt....................
Miscellaneous............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee s

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)..

Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers.........ccccvceiiiiciiieecnns
Capital contributions .
Transfers in (Note 10).......cccceviieiinieiiniiienineen,
Transfers out (Note 10)........ccceeiiiiiiiiieniinees
Change in net position.............c.c.ccccceeenee.
Net position — July 1, as restated (Note 23)......

Net position — June 30..........cccoviiiiiniiiiniiienns

Business-type Activities —
Enterprise Funds

Unemployment EPA N.C. State N.C.
Compensation Revolving Loan Lottery Turnpike
Fund Fund Fund Authority

$ 1,476,933 $ — $ — $ —

58,135 — — —

— 2,404 1,689,712 461

— 17,086 — —

— — — 62

— — 5,233 2,560

— — — 10,416

— — 64 —

1,535,068 19,490 1,695,009 13,499

— 5,684 17,540 1,285

— 133 1,457 1,086

— 1,484 169,143 11,163

— — — 461

— 23 346 9,931

— — 1,024,437 —

2,426,388 — — —

— 13 9 —

— 239 2,993 973

2,426,388 7,576 1,215,925 24,899
(891,320) 11,914 479,084 (11,400)

1,186,076 69,345 — —
1,165 2,477 417 2,568
(67,383) — — (52,755)

— — — 8

— (16,070) — —

— (3) — —

142,036 — — —

— — — 11,686
(2,674) (62) 8 (245)
1,259,220 55,687 425 (38,738)
367,900 67,601 479,509 (50,138)

— — — 13,529

— — — 56,246
(22,598) (1,582) (479,509) (3,571)
345,302 66,019 — 16,066
(1,909,283) 1,238,707 — 270,357

$ (1,563,981) $ 1,304,726 $ — $ 286,423

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-4

Other Total
Enterprise Enterprise
Funds Funds

$ — $ 1,476,933
— 58,135

1,580 1,694,157

11 11

— 17,086

7,481 7,543
94,102 101,895

— 10,416

19,275 19,275
574 638
123,023 3,386,089
63,283 87,792
3,123 5,799
27,217 209,007
389 850

2,899 13,199

— 1,024,437

11,796 11,796

— 2,426,388

4,888 4,910
4,635 8,840
118,230 3,793,018
4,793 (406,929)

654 1,256,075

937 937

154 6,781
(112) (120,250)
5,943 5,951
(2,547) (18,617)
2) (5)

— 142,036

— 11,686

20 (2,953)

5,047 1,281,641
9,840 874,712
7,580 21,109
8,031 64,277
(5,750) (513,010)
19,701 447,088
131,849 (268,370)

$ 151,550 $ 178,718

Governmental
Activities —
Internal
Service
Funds

26

218
20,986
312

360,011

79,218
33,916
160,679
695
20,597

372
16,584
37,052

349,113
10,898

59
433
(93)
110
515

263
1,287

12,185
396
6,020
(18,796)
(195)
218,013

$ 217,818
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State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Receipts from CUSIOMErS.......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Receipts from federal agencies..
Receipts from other funds.......

Payments to SUPPIIETS........cocuiiiiiiieiiieeeee e
Payments t0 @mPpIOYEES.........cuvviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Payments for prizes, benefits, and claims............ccccccooiiiiiinns
Payments to other funds.............eooiiiiiiiiiiii
Other rECEIPES. ...eeieeeiiieee e
Other payments

Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities...........

Cash Provided From (Used For)

Noncapital Financing Activities:
Grant FECEIPES ...eeiieie ettt
Federal recovery funds .
Subsidy to other governments.............cccocoeeiiiiiiiiieeseesees
Grants, aid, and subSIdIes...........cccoeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e
Advances from federal unemployment account ...............c...........
Payments to federal unemployment account ............c.cccceeeeinnnne
Interest expense and issuance cost..............
Advances from other funds...........
Transfers from other funds..

Total cash provided from (used for)
noncapital financing activities............cccccoeciiiiis

Cash Provided From (Used For)
Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets.............ccccccceeeeenn.
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets............cccccoeevviieieininncs
Proceeds from capital debt...........cccooiiiiiiiiiii e,
Transfers from other funds............ccooviiiiiiiiiie
Capital Grants...........oeiiiiiiiiiiee e
Capital contributions.............ccceviiiiiii e
Principal paid on capital debt............ccoooiiiiiiiii
Interest paid on capital debt.............coocoiiiiiiiiii
Federal subsidy for interest on debt.............cccccooviiiiiiiiiii.
INSUraNCe FECOVEIIES. ......uvviiiiiiiiiiie et
Total cash provided from (used for)
capital and related financing activities.............cccccceeeeiinns

Cash Provided From (Used For)
Investment Activities:
Proceeds from the sale/maturities of
non-State Treasurer iNvestMents............ccceoveeeiiieenee e
Purchase of non-State Treasurer investments................ccccceeeee.
Redemptions from State Treasurer investment pool...
LO@N iSSUANCES......ccuveiiieeeeeiiiiiee et
Loan repayments — interest...
Loan repayments — prinCipal...........ccccceviiiiiniiiiiii e
Investment arnings. ..........cuviiiiiiiiiie e
Total cash provided from (used for)
investment activities.........cccccvvvee

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................
Cash and cash equivalents at July 1.........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiciice,

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30..........cccceeviieeieeenieeee.

Business-type Activities —

Enterprise Funds

Unemployment EPA N.C. State N.C.
Compensation Revolving Loan Lottery Turnpike
Fund Fund Fund Authority
$ 1,475,619 $ 2,404 $ 1,573,884 $ 8,655
58,403 — — —
— (1,640) (55,481) (9,599)
— (5,641) (17,402) (1,401)
(2,452,203) — (1,032,548) —
— — 27 —
(2,674) (177) (2) (1,020)
(920,855) (5,054) 468,478 (3,365)
1,202,373 54,624 — —
— 14,772 — —
— (16,070) — —
1,058,793 — — —
(1,327,508) — — —
(83,929) — _ _
— — — 860
(22,598) (1,582) (462,367) (3,571)
— — — 8
827,131 51,744 (462,367) (2,703)
— (13) (572) (96,075)
— — — 89,368
— — — 56,246
— — — 12,441
_ — — (22,725)
_ — — (63,076)
— — — 11,686
— (13) (572) (12,135)
_ — — 7,438,817
— — — (7,424,506)
— (140,567) — —
— 17,972 — —
— 75,875 — —
468 1,493 446 3,801
468 (45,227) 446 18,112
(93,256) 1,450 5,985 (91)
187,873 361,572 26,500 2,902
$ 94,617 $ 363,022 $ 32,485 $ 2,811

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities —
Other Total Internal
Enterprise Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds
$ 123,884 $ 3,184,446 $ 47,571
— 58,403 1
— — 309,894
(36,883) (103,603) (237,813)
(62,980) (87,424) (78,687)
(27,979) (3,512,730) (573)
— — (13,385)
549 576 585
(3,897) (7,770) (66)
(7,306) (468,102) 27,527
654 1,257,651 59
— 14,772 —
— (16,070) —
(3,033) (3,033) —
— 1,058,793 —
— (1,327,508) —
— (83,929) (14)
— 860 —
8,031 8,031 6,020
(5,750) (495,868) (18,796)
937 937 —
— 8 —
839 414,644 (12,731)
(2,821) (99,481) (24,697)
22 22 1,686
1,716 91,084 —
— 56,246 —
— 12,441 —
63 63 —
(437) (23,162) (811)
(112) (63,188) (79)
— 11,686 —
5,943 5,943 110
4,374 (8,346) (23,791)
22,342 7,461,159 —
(20,633) (7,445,139) —
6,006 6,006 —
— (140,567) —
— 17,972 —
— 75,875 —
532 6,740 157
8,247 (17,954) 157
6,154 (79,758) (8,838)
45,580 624,427 102,229
$ 51,734 $ 544,669 $ 93,391

Continued




State of North Carolina

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Reconciliation of Operating Income

to Net Cash Provided

From (Used For) Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation

Interest earnings on loans classified as investing activity
Nonoperating miscellaneous income (expense)

(Increases) decreases in assets:
Receivables............cccovvvveeiniinnens
Due from other funds........
Due from component units...
Inventories.........ccccceeunnne.
Prepaid items

Increases (decreases) in liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Due to fiduciary funds
Unemployment benefits payable
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue.....
Deposits payable.........................
Total cash provided from

(used for) operations

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Noncash distributions from the State Treasurer

Long-Term Investment Portfolio and/or other agents

Donated or transferred assets

Change in construction in progress as a result of accrual

of accounts payable
Gain on extinguishment of debt

Change in fair value of investments

Increase in receivables related to nonoperating income

Change in securities lending collateral

Assets acquired through the assumption of a liability

Business-type Activities —
Enterprise Funds

Unemployment EPA N.C. State N.C.
Compensation Revolving Loan Lottery Turnpike
Fund Fund Fund Authority
$ (891,320) $ 11,914 $ 